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This is a free translation into English of the Statutory Auditors’ report issued in French and is
provided solely for the convenience of English speaking users. The Statutory Auditors’ report
includes information specifically required by French law in such reports, whether modified or not.
This information presented below is the audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements and
includes an explanatory paragraph discussing the Auditors’ assessments of certain significant
accounting and auditing matters. These assessments were considered for the purpose of issuing an
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole and not to provide separate
assurance on individual account balances, transactions, or disclosures.

This report also includes information relating to the specific verification of information given in the
Group's management report.

This report should be read in conjunction with, and construed in accordance with, French law and
professional auditing standards applicable in France.

Compagnie de Saint-Gobain S.A.
Les Miroirs

18, avenue d'Alsace

92400 Courbevoie

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your Annual General Meeting,
we hereby report to you, for the year ended December 31, 2011, on:

o the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Compagnie
de Saint-Gobain;

 the justification of our assessments;
« the specific verification required by law.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of
Directors. Our role is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit.
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I - Opinion on the consolidated financial statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures, using sampling techniques or
other methods of selection, to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
assets and liabilities and of the financial position of the Group at December 31, 2011
and of the results of its operations for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Il - Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L.823-9 of the French Commercial Code
(Code de Commerce) relating to the justification of our assessments, we bring to your
attention the following matters:

o Measurement of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Group regularly carries out impairment tests on its property, plant and
equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets, and also assesses whether there is
any indication of impairment of property, plant and equipment and amortizable
intangible assets, based on the methods described in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements (Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and goodwill). We examined the methods applied in implementing these tests and
the estimates and assumptions used, and we verified that the information disclosed in
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements is appropriate.
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o Employee benefits

The methods applied for assessing employee benefits are set out in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements (Employee benefits — defined benefit plans). These
benefit obligations were reviewed by independent actuaries. Our work consisted of
assessing the data and assumptions used, examining, on a test basis, the calculations
performed and verifying that the information disclosed in Notes 1 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements is appropriate.

e Provisions

As specified in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements (Other current and
non-current liabilities and provisions), the Group books provisions to cover risks.
The nature of the provisions recorded under “Other current and non-current
liabilities and provisions” are described in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements. Based on the information available at the time of our audit, we ensured
that the methods and data used to determine provisions, particularly relating to the
European Commission’s decision concerning the automotive glass industry, as well
as the disclosures regarding said provisions provided in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements, are appropriate.

These assessments were made as part of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, and therefore contributed to the opinion we formed
which is expressed in the first part of this report.

111 - Specific verification

As required by law, we have also verified in accordance with professional standards
applicable in France the information presented in the Group’s management report.

We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the
consolidated financial statements.

Neuilly-sur-Seine and Paris La Défense, February 16, 2012
The Statutory Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers Audit KPMG Audit
Department of KPMG S.A.

Pierre Coll  Jean-Christophe Georghiou Jean-Paul Vellutini  Philippe Grandclerc



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statement

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010

(in EUR millions) Notes
ASSETS

Goodwill 3) 11,041 11,030
Other intangible assets (4) 3,148 3,067
Property, plant and equipment (5) 14,225 13,727
Investments in associates (6) 167 137
Deferred tax assets (15) 949 700
Other non-current assets (7) 347 272
Non-current assets 29,877 28,933
Inventories (8) 6,477 5,841
Trade accounts receivable 9) 5,341 5,038
Current tax receivable 182 175
Other receivables 9) 1,408 1,248
Cash and cash equivalents (19 2,949 2,762
Current assets 16,357 15,064
Total Assets 46,234 43,997

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital stoc (10) 2,142 2,123
Additional paid-in capital and legal reserve 5,920 5,781
Retained earnings and net income for the year 10,654 10,614
Cumulative translation adjustments (476) (383)
Fair value reserves (22) (43)
Treasury stock (10) (403) (224)
Shareholders' equity 17,815 17,868
Minority interests 403 364
Total equity 18,218 18,232
Long-term debt (29) 8,326 7,822
Provisions for pensions and other employee benefits 14 3,458 2,930
Deferred tax liabilities (15) 893 909
Other non-current liabilities and provisions (16) 1 2,228
Non-current liabilities 14,820 13,889
Current portion of long-term debt (29) 1,656 1,094
Current portion of other liabilities (16) 733 527
Trade accounts payable a7 6,018 5,690
Current tax liabilities 165 156
Other payables and accrued expenses 17) 3,562 3,395
Short-term debt and bank overdrafts (29) 1,062 1,014
Current liabilities 13,196 11,876
Total Equity and Liabilities 46,234 43,997

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdimsolidated financial statements.



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statement

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(in EUR millions) Notes 2011 2010
Net sales (32) 42,116 40,119
Cost of sales (22) (31,763) (30,059)
Selling, general and administrative expenses inefucesearch (22) (6,912) (6,943)
Operating income 3,441 3,117
Other business income (22) 69 87
Other business expense (22) (864) (680)
Business income 2,646 2,524
Borrowing costs, gross (559) (558)
Income from cash and cash equivalents 43 39
Borrowing costs, net (516) (519)
Other financial income and expense (23) (122) (220)
Net financial expense (638) (739)
Share in net income of associates (6) 8 5
Income taxes (15) (656) (577)
Net income 1,360 1,213
Attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,284 1129
Minority interests 76 84
Earnings per share (in EUR)
Weighted average number of shares in issue 52627r4,9 517,954,691
Basic earnings per share (25) 2.44 2.18
Weighted average number of shares assuming fuliail 530,333,380 519,887,155
Diluted earnings per share (25) 2.42 2.17

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statement

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNIZED INCOME AND EXP ENSE

Shareholders' i inori )
areholders’ equity Mmorlty Total equity
interests

(in EUR millions) Before tax effect Tax effect
2010
Net income 1,667 (538) 84 1,213
Translation adjustments 956 33 989
Changes in fair values 32 (12) 20
Changes in actuarial gains and losses (142) 40 (102)
Other (66) (©) (69) (*)
Income and expense recogni zed directlyin equity 780 28 30 838
Total recognized income and expense for the year 472,4 (510) 114 2,051
2011
Net income 1,903 (619) 76 1,360
Translation adjustments (93) (15) (108)
Changes in fair values 21 9 12
Changes in actuarial gains and losses (704) 240 (464)
Other (6) 3 (5 (8)(*)
Income and expense recognized directlyin equity (782 234 (20) (568)
Total recognized income and expense for the year 1,121 (385) 56 792

(*) “Other” mainly includes the impact of applyirige changes introduced by IFRS 3R.

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdimsolidated financial statements.



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statement

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(in EUR millions) Notes 2011 2010
Net income attributable to equity holders of the paent 1,284 1,129
Minority interests in net income *) 76 84
Share in netincome of associates, net of divideacsived (6) 1) (5)
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of assets (22) 1,892 1,755
Gains and losses on disposals of assets (22) 1) (87)
Unrealized gains and losses arising from changfzgrivalue and share-based payments 48 53
Changes in inventories (8) (551) (404)
Changes in trade accounts receivable and payatiether accounts receivable and payable 9)17) 18 299
Changes in tax receivable and payable (15) (6) 179
Changes in deferred taxes and provisions for didtgfities and charges (14)(15)(16) (374) (230)
Net cash from operating activities 2,385 2,773
Purchases of property, plant and equipment [20,336), 2010: (1,450)] and intangible assets @) (2,028) (1,520)
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to supplidigedfassets 17) 18 48
Acquisitions of shares in consolidated compani€4 {2 (688), 2010: (113)], net of cash acquired 2 (666) (72)
Acquisitions of other investments (7) 8) (5
Increase in investment-related liabilities (16) 0 17
Decrease in investment-related liabilities (16) (17) (4
Investments (2,701) (1,536)
Disposals of property, plant and equipment andhigitde assets 4)(5) 90 99
Disposals of shares in consolidated companiesfreetsh divested 2 8 176
Disposals of other investments (7) 2 3
Divestments 100 278
Increase in loans and deposits (7 (38) 77
Decrease in loans and deposits (7) 53 63
Net cash from (used in) investing activities (2,586) 1,272)
Issues of capital stock * 158 511
Minority interests’ share in capital increasesdisidiaries * 4 2
Acquisitions of minority interests *) 6) (11)
Changes in investment related liabilities followihg exercise of put options of minority *) (20) (12)
(Increase) decrease in treasury stock * (186) (29
Dividends paid ) (603) (509)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders of consatiédi subsidiaries and increase (decreas
dividends pavab (20) (64)
Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts and otloet-srm debt 64 12
Increase in long-term debt *) 2,069 208
Decrease in long-term debt () (1,055) (2,082)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities 405 (1,969)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 204 (468)
Net effect of exchange rate changes on cash ahdecasvalents (20) 73
Net effect from changes in fair value on cash ashequivalents 3 0
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,762 3,157
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 2,949 2,762

(*) References to the consolidated statement afigésin equity.
(**) Including bond premiums, prepaid interest asslie costs.

Income tax paid amounted to €668 million in 201Q1@ €362 million). Interest paid net of interesteived amounted to €484 million in 2011 (2010:
€586 million).

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdimsolidated financial statements.



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statement

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Number of shares)

(in EUR millions)

Issued Outstandin  Capital Additional Retainec  Cumulative Fair value  Treasur Share-  Minority Total
(excluding stock paid-in  earning: translatior reserves stock holders' interests  equity
treasury stoct capitalant and ne adjustments equity
legal reservéncome fo
the year
At January 1, 2010 512,931,016 508,473,517 2,052 5,341 0,137 (1,340) (75) (203) 15,912 302 16,214
Income and expenses recognized directly
in equity 0 0 (180) 956 32 0 808 30 838
Net income for the year 1,129 1,129 84 1,213
Total recognizedincomeand expense
for the year 0 0 949 956 32 0 1,937 114 2,051
Issues of capital stock
Stock dividends 12,861,368 12,861,368 51 315 366 366
Group Savings Plan 4,993,989 4,993,989 20 123 143 143
Stock option plans 50,068 50,068 2 2 2
Other 0 2 2
Dividends paid (EUR 1.00 per share) (509) (509) (54) (563)
Treasury stock purchased (6,114,150) 1 (212) (211) (211)
Treasury stock sold 5,457,752 (4) 191 187 187
Share-based payments 41 41 41
At December 31, 201 530,836,44  525,722,54 2,12% 5,781 10,61« (383) (43) (224 17,86¢ 364 18,23.
Income and expenses recognized directly
in equity 0 0 (476) (93) 21 0 (548) (20) (568)
Net income for the year 1,284 1,284 76 1,360
Total recognizedincomeand expense
for the year 0 0 808 93 21 0 736 56 792
Issues of capital stock
Group Savings Plan 4,497,772 4,497,772 18 132 150 150
Stock option plans 229,510 229,510 1 7 8 8
Other 0 4 4
Dividends paid (EUR 1.15 per share) (603) (603) (21) (624)
Treasury stock purchased (10,180,347) (418) (418) (418)
Treasury stock sold 5,936,217 @) 239 232 232
Forward purchases of treasury stock (197) (197) (197)
Share-based payments 39 39 39
At December 31, 2011 535,563,723 526,205,696 2,142 (%,92 10,654 (476) (22) (403) 17,815 403 18,218

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdimsolidated financial statements.



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statement

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES AND POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of Compagdei&aint-Gobain and its subsidiaries (“the GrouEye
been prepared in accordance with the InternatiBimaincial Reporting Standards (IFRS) adopted feringhe
European Union at December 31, 2011, correspontingpe IFRS issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB).

The accounting policies applied are consistent Witise used to prepare the financial statementthéoyear
ended December 31, 2010, except for the applicatidhe new standards and interpretations desciiesaly.
The consolidated financial statements have beqraped using the historical cost convention, exéaptertain
assets and liabilities that have been measured tisinfair value model as explained in these notes.

The standards, interpretations and amendmentshicssbed standards applicable for the first tim@1i1 (see
the table below) do not have a material impacthenGroup’s consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early adopted any new standistéspretations or amendments to published stasdwat
are applicable for financial years beginning omier January 1, 2012 (see the table below).

These consolidated financial statements were addptehe Board of Directors on February 16, 2012 il
be submitted to the Shareholders' Meeting for agdrdhey are presented in millions of euros.

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of consolidated financial statemémtcompliance with IFRS requires management téema
estimates and assumptions that affect the repamedunts of assets and liabilities and the disciosair
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effittencial statements, as well as the reportecuats®mf income
and expenses during the period. These estimateassutinptions are based on past experience andrions/a
other factors, including the prevailing economiwissnment. Actual amounts may differ from thoseabdbéd
through the use of these estimates and assumptions.

The main estimates and assumptions described &g thetes concern the measurement of employee benefi
obligations (Note 14), provisions for other liabds and charges (Note 16), asset impairment (bt 1),
deferred taxes (Note 15), share-based paymentegNdt, 12 and 13) and financial instruments (N6je 2
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SUMMARY OF NEW STANDARDS , INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED STANDA RDS

Standards, interpretations and amendments to existg standards applicable in 2011

Amendment to IAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues

IAS 24R Related Party Disclosures

Amendment to IFRIC Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

14

Amendment to IFRS 1 Limited Exemption from CompiaeatFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities withgity Instruments

2010 Annual improvements to IFRS

Standards, interpretations and amendments to exisig standards early adopted in 2011

Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Staieis

Amendments to IFRS 7| Disclosures — Transfers ddiiéral Assets

Standards adopted by the European Union may beikted®n the European Commission website, at
http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/accountingfidek_en.htm

CONSOLIDATION

Scope of consolidation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements ishelthe accounts of Compagnie de Saint-Gobain aradl of
companies controlled by the Group, as well as tldgeintly controlled companies and companies ovhich
the Group exercises significant influence.

Significant changes in the Group's scope of codatibn during 2011 are presented in Note 2 andtafithe
principal consolidated companies at December 311 20 provided in Note 33.

Consolidation methods

Companies over which the Group exercises exclusigetrol, either directly or indirectly, are fully
consolidated.

Interests in jointly controlled entities are projpamately consolidated. The Group has elected o@piply the
alternative treatment permitted by IAS 31, undeicWwhointly controlled companies may be accountadify
the equity method, and has maintained the prop@teoconsolidation method.

Companies over which the Group directly or indikeeixercises significant influence are accountedbfpthe
equity method.

The Group's share of the profit of companies actmlfor by the equity method is recognized in theome
statement under "Share in net income of associates"

Business combinations

The Group has applied IFRS 3R and IAS 27A on agaative basis starting from January 1, 2010. Assalt,
business combinations completed prior to that dederecognized in accordance with the previousimessof
IFRS 3 and IAS 27.



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statement

= Goodwill

When an entity is acquired by the Group, the idialie assets and assumed liabilities of the erdiy
recognized at their fair value. Any adjustmentsptovisional values as a result of completing thigiaih
accounting are recognized within twelve months raticbspectively at the acquisition date.

The final acquisition price (referred to as “comsation transferred” in IFRS 3R), including theimastted fair
value of any earn-out payments or other deferretsideration (referred to as “contingent considers is

determined in the twelve months following the asgign. Under IFRS 3R, any adjustments to the aitjoin

price beyond this twelve-month period are recorisethe income statement. Since January 1, 201Q;o0atis
directly attributable to the business combinatiae, costs that the acquirer incurs to effect airtass
combination such as professional fees paid to tmwest banks, attorneys, auditors, independentsrsland
other consultants, are no longer capitalized asgfdhe cost of the business combination, butracegnized as
expenses as incurred.

In addition, starting from January 1, 2010, gootigilrecognized only at the date that control isi@eed (or
joint control is achieved in the case of propordtty consolidated companies or significant infleeens

obtained in the case of entities accounted forHgy equity method). Any subsequent increase in cstigr
interest is recorded as a change in equity atafilatto the equity holders of the parent withouustihg

goodwill.

Goodwill is recorded in the consolidated balanceesias the difference between the acquisition-@étevalue
of (i) the consideration transferred plus the antafimny minority interests and (ii) the identiflamet assets of
the acquiree. Minority interests are measured e#ketheir proportionate interest in the net idatile assets
(partial goodwill method) or at their fair value tie acquisition date (full goodwill method). Asetipartial
goodwill method is applied by the Group, goodwdlaulated by the full goodwill method is not madéri

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of guiaition over the fair value of the Group’s shaf¢he assets
and liabilities of the acquired entity. If the cadtthe acquisition is less than the fair valughe net assets and
liabilities acquired, the difference is recogniziigectly in the income statement.

=  Step acquisitions and partial disposals

When the Group acquires control of an entity inalhit already held an equity interest, the trarisacts
treated as a step acquisition (an acquisitiondgest), as follows: (i) as a disposal of the preslipheld interest,
with recognition of any gain or loss in the condated financial statements, and (ii) as an acduisibf the
entire interest, with recognition of the correspogdyoodwill (on both the old and new acquisitions)

When the Group disposes of part of an equity istedeading to the loss of control (with a minorityerest
retained), the transaction is also treated as #alisposal and an acquisition, as follows: (i) aésposal of the
entire interest, with recognition of any gain osdoin the consolidated financial statements, anda¢ an
acquisition of the retained non-controlling (mirgyiinterest, measured at fair value.



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statement

= Potential voting rights and share purchase comnritsie

Potential voting rights conferred by call options minority interests (non-controlling interestsg daaken into
account in determining whether the Group exclugiwgntrols an entity only when the options are eutly
exercisable.

When calculating its percentage of interest in mlgd companies, the Group considers the impactads put
and call options on minority interests in the comipa concerned. This approach gives rise to thegrétion in

the financial statements of an investment-relaiuility (included within “Other liabilities”) comsponding to
the present value of the estimated exercise pifitheoput option, with a corresponding reductiomimority

interests and equity attributable to equity holddrthe parent. Any subsequent changes in thevédire of the
liability are recognized by adjusting equity.

= Minority interests

Up to December 31, 2009, transactions with minaritgrests were treated in the same way as traosaatith

parties external to the Group. As from January 1,02 changes in minority interests (referred to‘ramn-

controlling interests” in IFRS 3R) are accountedds equity transactions between two categorieswofers of
a single economic entity in accordance with IAS 224 a result, they are recorded in the statemiedhanges
in equity and have no impact on the income statéroemalance sheet, except for changes in castcasi
equivalents.

Non-current assets and liabilities held for sale Biscontinued operations

Assets and liabilities that are immediately avdédbr sale and for which a sale is highly probabie classified
as non-current assets and liabilities held for.Salken several assets are held for sale in a strghsaction,
they are accounted for as a disposal group, whisth iacludes any liabilities directly associatedhwihose
assets.

The assets or disposal groups held for sale arsureat the lower of carrying amount and fair gdkss costs
to sell. Depreciation ceases when non-current assatisposal groups are classified as held fa. $&hen the
assets held for sale are consolidated companidsrrelé tax is recognized on the difference betwten
consolidated carrying amount of the shares and tieibasis, in accordance with 1AS 12.

Non-current assets and liabilities held for sale presented separately on the face of the consadidmlance
sheet, and income and expenses continue to benigedgn the consolidated income statement on exbin

line basis. Income and expenses arising on disuaedi operations are recorded as a single amouitediace
of the consolidated income statement.

At each balance sheet date, the value of the amsétkabilities is reviewed to determine whethey arovision

adjustments should be recorded due to a changeimnfair value less costs to sell.

Intragroup transactions

All intragroup balances and transactions are ekiteid in consolidation.

10



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statement

Translation of the financial statements of foreigrcompanies

The consolidated financial statements are presentedros, which is Compagnie de Saint-Gobain'stional
and presentation currency.

Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries outside éhieo zone are translated into euros at the cleskehange rate
and income and expense items are translated ustngvierage exchange rate for the period, excepiicase
of significant exchange rate volatility.

The Group’s share of any translation gains or dseincluded in equity under “Cumulative trangati
adjustments” until the foreign operations to whikhy relate are sold or liquidated, at which titmeytare taken
to the income statement if the transaction resnlis loss of control or recognized directly in gtatement of
changes in equity if the change in ownership istedees not result in a loss of control.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated imoGompany’s functional currency using the exchamages
prevailing at the transaction date. Assets andlilias denominated in foreign currencies are tlatesl at the
closing rate and any exchange differences are dedoin the income statement. As an exception te thi
principle, exchange differences relating to loamd borrowings between Group companies are recorasgdf
tax, in equity under “Cumulative translation adiments”, as in substance they are an integral gatieonet
investment in a foreign subsidiary.

BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Goodwill
See the section above on “business combinations”.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets primarily include patebtands, software and development costs. They aasuned at
historical cost less accumulated amortization amgbirment.

Acquired retail brands and certain manufacturingnds are treated as intangible assets with indefuseful
lives as they have a strong national and/or inteynal reputation. These brands are not amortizecie tested
for impairment on an annual basis. Other brandsum@rtized over their useful lives, not to exce@d/dars.

Costs incurred to develop software in-house — milypnaonfiguration, programming and testing costare
recognized as intangible assets. Patents and padh@mputer software are amortized over theimeséd
useful lives, not exceeding 20 years for patentk3ato 5 years for software.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Develbposa meeting the recognition criteria under B&are
included in intangible assets and amortized oveir thstimated useful lives (not to exceed 5 yehmsh the
date when the products to which they relate ast firarketed.

Concerning greenhouse gas emissions allowancespowsipn is recorded in the consolidated financial
statements to cover any difference between the @ a@amissions and the allowances granted.

11



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statement

Property, plant and equipment
Land, buildings and equipment are carried at hisabrost less accumulated depreciation and impaitm

Cost may also include incidental expenses dirattiybutable to the acquisition, such as transfiens equity
of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedefggroperty, plant and equipment purchases.

Expenses incurred in exploring and evaluating naihexsources are included in property, plant andpegent
when it is probable that associated future econdraimefits will flow to the Group. They include miirthe
costs of topographical or geological studies, idiglicosts, sampling costs and all costs incurreasgessing the
technical feasibility and commercial viability ofteacting the mineral resource.

Material borrowing costs incurred for the constimtand acquisition of property, plant and equiptrere
included in the cost of the related asset.

Except for the head office building, which is theoGp’s only material non-industrial asset, propepignt and
equipment are considered as having no residuakyalsi most items are intended to be used untiktigeof
their useful lives and are not generally expeotellet sold.

Property, plant and equipment other than land epeetiated using the components approach, onighdtiae
basis over the following estimated useful livesjolitare regularly reviewed:

« Major factories and offices 30-40 years
« Other buildings 15-25 years
¢ Production machinery and equipment 5-16 years
* Vehicles 3-5 years

« Furniture, fixtures, office and computer equipment 4-16 years

Gypsum quarries are depreciated over their estimageful lives, based on the quantity of gypsunmaex¢d
during the year compared with the extraction cdpaci

Provisions for site restoration are recognizedasponents of assets in the event of a sudden deggoin in
site conditions and whenever the Group has a @gabnstructive obligation to restore a site inc&adance with
contractually determined conditions. These provisiare reviewed periodically and may be discounteu the
expected useful lives of the assets concerned.cbhgonent is depreciated over the same usefubsféhat
used for mines and quarries.

Government grants for purchases of property, pdeuct equipment are recorded under “Other payabled” a
taken to the income statement over the estimatefilug/es of the relevant assets.

Finance leases and operating leases

Assets held under leases that transfer to the Gsobgtantially all of the risks and rewards of owshé
(finance leases) are recognized as property, plagitequipment. They are recognized at the commesrdeoh
the lease term at the lower of the fair value &f ldased property and the present value of thenmimi lease
payments.

Property, plant and equipment acquired under fiedeases are depreciated on a straight-line basistbe
shorter of the estimated useful life of the assdetermined using the same criteria as for assete® by the

Group — or the lease term. The corresponding ltghd shown in the balance sheet net of relatéer@st.

Rental payments under operating leases are expassedurred.
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Non-current financial assets

Non-current financial assets include availabledale and other securities, as well as other nomeguassets,
which primarily comprise long-term loans and defosi

Investments classified as “available-for-sale” aegried at fair value. Unrealized gains and losseshese
investments are recognized in equity, unless thesiments have suffered an other-than-temporargaterial

decline in value, in which case an impairment iesgcorded in the income statement.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill

Property, plant and equipment, goodwill and othéarigible assets are tested for impairment on @aegasis.
These tests consist of comparing the asset’s ogrigimount to its recoverable amount. Recoverablauatris

the higher of the asset’s fair value less costsetband its value in use, calculated by referdoctne present
value of the future cash flows expected to be @erivom the asset.

For property, plant and equipment and amortizatiignigible assets, an impairment test is performeghever
revenues from the asset decline or the asset desayperating losses due to either internal oreatdactors,
and no material improvement is forecast in the ahbudget or the business plan.

For goodwill and other intangible assets (includbrgnds with indefinite useful lives), an impairrhéest is
performed at least annually based on the five-yrainess plan. Goodwill is reviewed systematicalhd
exhaustively at the level of each cash-generatmg(CGU). The Group’s reporting segments are usitess
sectors, which may each include several CGUs. A @G&Jreporting sub-segment, generally defined esra
business of the segment in a given geographical. draypically reflects the manner in which theoGp
organizes its business and analyzes its resultinfernal reporting purposes. A total of 36 CGUsl leeen
identified at December 31, 2011.

Goodwill and brands are allocated mainly to the €&yp and Industrial Mortars CGUs and to the Building
Distribution CGUs primarily in the United Kingdorfrance and Scandinavia. Details of goodwill anchtisa
by Sector are provided in the segment informatidotets in Note 32.

The method used for these impairment tests is stamiwith that employed by the Group for the vaturaof
companies acquired in business combinations origitigns of equity interests. The carrying amouhthe
CGUs is compared to their value in use, correspundd the present value of future cash flows exolgd
interest but including tax. Cash flows for theHiftear of the business plan are rolled forward tiverfollowing
two years. For impairment tests of goodwill, norivetash flows (corresponding to cash flows atntid-point

in the business cycle) are then projected to peityaising a low annual growth rate (generally ¥xcept for
emerging markets or businesses with a high orggrdwth potential where a 1.5% rate may be used@ Th
discount rate applied to these cash flows corredptmthe Group’s average cost of capital (7.25%oitth 2011
and 2010) plus a country risk premium where appatprdepending on the geographic area concernesl. Th
discount rates applied in 2011 and 2010 for thenrogerating regions were 7.25% for the euro zomeNuorth
America, 8.25% for Eastern Europe and China ans98.for South America.

The recoverable amount calculated using a posthtoount rate gives the same result as a pre-texapplied
to pre-tax cash flows.

Different assumptions measuring the method's seitgitare systematically tested using the following
parameters:

* 0.5-point increase or decrease in the annual ageedg of growth in cash flows projected to peripgtu
¢ 0.5-point increase or decrease in the discountagéed to cash flows.

Tests performed in 2011 led to the recognition $2@1 million impairment loss on goodwill on GypsimNorth

America, and Building Distribution in certain couas due to unfavorable changes in local marketliions. The
breakdown of asset impairments by Sector and bysDiv for 2011 and 2010 is provided in the segment
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information tables in Note 32.

A 0.5-point decrease in projected average annoatgrin cash flows to perpetuity for all the CGUsuM lead to
less than €100 million in additional write-downsimangible assets, while a 0.5-point increasééndiscount rate
applied to all the CGUs would result in additionaite-downs of approximately €120 million.

Impairment losses on goodwill can never be revettseaigh income. For property, plant and equipnagick other
intangible assets, an impairment loss recognizedprior period may be reversed if there is ancatn that the
impairment no longer exists and that the recoveraiylount of the asset concerned exceeds its guagiount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andremdizable value. The cost of inventories incluttes costs of
purchase, costs of conversion, and other costsrettin bringing the inventories to their presestation and
condition. It is generally determined using thegiéed-average cost method, and in some casesritérFirst-

Out (FIFO) method. Cost of inventories may alsdude the transfer from equity of any gains/lossesjalifying

cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchaseswf materials. Net realizable value is the sellingepin the
ordinary course of business, less estimated amstapletion and costs to sell. No account is tékéhe inventory
valuation process of the impact of below-normakc#y utilization rates.

Operating receivables and payables

Operating receivables and payables are statednainabvalue as they generally have maturities e§ lthan
three months. Provisions for impairment are esthbli to cover the risk of total or partial non-rexy.

For trade receivables transferred under secuiizgtrograms, the contracts concerned are analgpeldif
substantially all the risks associated with theenesbles are not transferred to the financing tastins, they
remain on the balance sheet and a correspondiititiias recognized in short-term debt.

Net debt
= Long-term debt

Long-term debt includes bonds, Medium Term Notespetual bonds, participating securities and dieot
types of long-term financial liabilities includirigase liabilities and the fair value of derivativpsglifying as

interest rate hedges.

Under IAS 32, the distinction between financiablidgies and equity is based on the substance efctntracts
concerned rather than their legal form. As a regdltticipating securities are classified as dabthe balance
sheet date, long-term debt is measured at amortizetd Premiums and issuance costs are amortizeg te

effective interest method.

14



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statement

=  Short-term debt

Short-term debt includes the current portion of tbeg-term debt described above, short-term finamci
programs such as commercial paper laliéts de trésorerie(French commercial paper), bank overdrafts and
other short-term bank borrowings, as well as the ¥alue of credit derivatives not qualifying foredtige
accounting. At the balance sheet date, short-tegbt & measured at amortized cost, with the exoepif
derivatives that are held as hedges of debt. Pramiand issuance costs are amortized using thetiefec
interest method.

= Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents mainly consist of cashamnl, bank accounts and marketable securitiesatieat
short-term, highly liquid investments readily cortilde into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Marketabbeurities are measured at fair value through tpoofioss.

Further details about long- and short-term debpaogided in Note 19.

Foreign exchange, interest rate and commodity deratives (swaps, options, futures)

The Group uses interest rate, foreign exchangecanunodity derivatives to hedge its exposure to gesrin
interest rates, exchange rates and commodity ghieésnay arise in the normal course of business.

In accordance with IAS 32 and IAS 39, all of theésstruments are recognized in the balance sheet and
measured at fair value, irrespective of whethenairthey are part of a hedging relationship thatlias for
hedge accounting under IAS 39.

Changes in fair value of both derivatives thatdesignated and qualify as fair value hedges andatetes that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken ®itfltome statement (in business income for foreigiange
and commodity derivatives qualifying for hedge aouing, and in net financial expense for all other
derivatives). However, in the case of derivativiest tqualify as cash flow hedges, the effectiveiporbf the
gain or loss arising from changes in fair valueeisognized directly in equity, and only the ineffee portion is
recognized in the income statement.

= Fair value hedges

Most interest rate derivatives used by the Groupatap fixed rates for variable rates are designabedqualify
as fair value hedges. These derivatives hedge-fixeddebts exposed to a fair value risk. In acmocd with
hedge accounting principles, debt included in agiheded fair value hedging relationship is remeedat fair
value. As the effective portion of the gain or lass the fair value hedge offsets the loss or gaintre
underlying hedged item, the income statement ig iompacted by the ineffective portion of the hedge.

= Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedge accounting is applied by the Growgnly for derivatives used to fix the cost of fugu
investments in financial assets or property, pardt equipment, future purchases of gas and fuéfixéd-for-
variable price swaps) and future purchases ofdareurrencies (forward contracts). The transactimdged by
these instruments are qualified as highly probable application of cash flow hedge accountingvetldhe
Group to defer the impact on the income statemetiieeffective portion of changes in the fair \&ahf these
instruments by recording them in a special hedgisgrve in equity. The reserve is reclassified theoincome
statement when the hedged transaction occurs andettiged item affects income. In the same way rafaifo
value hedges, cash flow hedging limits the Grogpjsosure to changes in the fair value of thesesmicaps to
the ineffective portion of the hedge.
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= Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accougtin

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do qumlify for hedge accounting are recognized m ittcome
statement. The instruments concerned mainly inclerdss-currency swaps; gas, currency and inteeget r
options; currency swaps; and futures and forwardraots.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financiablilities quoted in an active market correspond$héir quoted
price, classified as level 1 in the fair value bhiehy defined in IFRS 7. The fair value of finah@asets and
financial liabilities not quoted in an active marke established by a recognized valuation techmisuch as
reference to the fair value of another recent amilag transaction, or discounted cash flow anaysased on
observable market data, classified as level 2erRS 7 fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of short-term financial assets a@abilities is considered as being the same as taenying
amount due to their short maturities.

Employee benefits — defined benefit plans

After retirement, the Group’s former employees alfigible for pension benefits in accordance witke th
applicable laws and regulations in the respectivantries in which the Group operates. There are als
additional pension obligations in certain Group pamies, both in France and other countries.

In France, employees receive length-of-service dsvayn retirement based on years of service and the
calculation methods prescribed in the applicabliective bargaining agreements.

The Group’s obligation for the payment of pensians length-of-service awards is determined at Hianze
sheet date by independent actuaries, using a méthotbkes into account projected final salartag@rement
and economic conditions in each country. Thesaggatibns may be financed by pension funds, witho&ipion
recognized in the balance sheet for the unfundetibpo

The effect of any plan amendments (past servic gecognized on a straight-line basis overrdrmeaining
vesting period, or immediately if the benefits aleeady vested.

Actuarial gains or losses reflect year-on-year gearin the actuarial assumptions used to measerétbup’s
obligations and plan assets, experience adjustnigiffisrences between the actuarial assumptionsadnad has
actually occurred), and changes in legislation.yTdre recognized in equity as they occur.

In the United States, Spain and Germany, retiregpl@mpes receive benefits other than pensions, gnainl
concerning healthcare. The Group’s obligation urtdese plans is determined using an actuarial rdedhd is
covered by a provision recorded in the balancetshee

Provisions are also set aside on an actuarial fasisther employee benefits, such as jubileestberolong-
service awards, deferred compensation, specifitaveebenefits, and termination benefits in varioaantries.
Any actuarial gains and losses relating to thesefits are recognized immediately.

The Group has elected to recognize the interess dosthese obligations and the expected returplam assets
as financial expense or income.

Employee benefits — defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans areenged as incurred.
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Employee benefits — share-based payments
= Stock-options plans

The cost of stock option plans is calculated ughmg Black & Scholes option pricing model, basedtioa
following parameters:

« Volatility assumptions that take into account thstdrical volatility of the share price over a iod
10-year period, as well as implied volatility framaded share options. Periods of extreme share pric
volatility are disregarded.

« Assumptions relating to the average holding pedbdptions, based on observed behavior of option
holders.

» Expected dividends, as estimated on the basisstfridal information dating back to 1988.

e Arrisk-free interest rate corresponding to thed/ieh long-term government bonds.

* The effect of any stock market performance cond#jowhich is taken into account in the initial
measurement of the plan cost under IFRS 2.

The cost calculated using this method is recognirethe income statement over the vesting periodhef
options, ranging from 3 to 4 years.

For options exercised for new shares, the sum veddoy the Company when the options are exercised i
recorded in “Capital stock” for the portion repnetieg the par value of the shares, with the balanoet of
directly attributable transaction costs — recordeder “Additional paid-in capital”.

= Group Savings Plan ("PEG")

The method used by Saint-Gobain to calculate tls¢sanf its Group Savings Plan takes into accouamtfdlat
that shares granted to employees under the plasusject to a five- or ten-year lock-up. The logk-¢ost is
measured and deducted from the 20% discount gréytdae Group on employee share awards. The céloula
parameters are defined as follows:

* The exercise price, as set by the Board of Dirgctoorresponds to the average of the opening share
prices quoted over the 20 trading days precedieglétte of grant, less a 20% discount.

e The grant date of the options is the date on wkiehplan is announced to employees. For the Saint-
Gobain Group, this is the date when the plan’s $eamd conditions are announced on the Group’s
intranet.

* The interest rate used to estimate the cost ofatieup feature of employee share awards is the rat
that would be charged by a bank to an individughwin average risk profile for a general purpoge-fi
or ten-year consumer loan repayable at maturity.

Leveraged plan costs are calculated under IFRSIZ&isame way as for non-leveraged plans, buttakeointo
account the advantage accruing to employees whe dezess to share prices with a volatility pradiiapted to
institutional investors.

The cost of the plans is recognized in full atéhd of the subscription period.
= Performance share grants

The Group set up a worldwide share grant plan id92@hereby each Group employee was awarded seven
shares, and performance share plans in 2009 andl f@@lcertain categories of employees. These piaas
subject to eligibility criteria based on the graiseperiod of service with the Group. The plan sastlculated
under IFRS 2 take into account the eligibility erig, the performance criteria — which are desdribeNote 13

— and the lock-up feature. They are determined ditelucting the present value of forfeited dividewth the
performance shares and are recognized over theggsriod, which ranges from 2 to 4 years dependmthe
country.
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Equity
= Additional paid-in capital and legal reserve

This item includes capital contributions in exce$she par value of capital stock as well as tlgaleeserve
which corresponds to a cumulative portion of theineome of Compagnie de Saint-Gobain.

= Retained earnings and net income for the year

Retained earnings and net income for the year gpored to the Group’s share in the undistributediegs of
all consolidated companies.

= Treasury stock

Treasury stock is measured at cost and recordeddasiuction from equity. Gains and losses on dedpasf
treasury stock are recognized directly in equity have no impact on net income for the period.

Forward purchases of treasury stock are treatédeisame way. When a fixed number of shares ishpsed
forward at a fixed price, this amount is recorded'®ther liabilities” and as a deduction from eguitnder
“Retained earnings and net income for the year”.
Other current and non-current liabilities and provi sions

= Provisions for other liabilities and charges
A provision is booked when (i) the Group has a @né$egal or constructive obligation towards adfparty as
a result of a past event, (ii) it is probable thatoutflow of resources will be required to settle obligation,

and (iii) the amount of the obligation can be eatied reliably.

If the timing or the amount of the obligation cahbe measured reliably, it is classified as a cwant liability
and reported as an off-balance sheet commitment.

Provisions for other material liabilities and chesgvhose timing can be estimated reliably are disisnl to
present value.

= Investment-related liabilities
Investment-related liabilities correspond to putiaps granted to minority shareholders of subsidgand
liabilities relating to the acquisition of sharesGroup companies, including additional purchasesickeration.

They are reviewed on a periodic basis and any suilest changes in the fair value of minority shatédoputs
are recognized by adjusting equity.
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INCOME STATEMENT ITEMS

Revenue recognition

Revenue generated by the sale of goods or seridaesognized net of rebates, discounts and sakes t(i)
when the risks and rewards of ownership have bemsferred to the customer, or (ii) when the senhas
been rendered, or (iii) by reference to the stdgmmpletion of the services to be provided.

Construction contracts are accounted for using#reentage of completion method, as explained heldiaen
the outcome of a construction contract can be estidhreliably, contract revenue and costs are rézed as
revenue and expenses, respectively, by referenthetstage of completion of the contract activitytlze
balance sheet date. When the outcome of a coristmumintract cannot be estimated reliably, contragenue
is recognized only to the extent of contract castairred that it is probable will be recovered. \Whe is
probable that total contract costs will exceed ltotantract revenue, the expected loss is recogn@&e@n
expense immediately.

Construction contract revenues are not materigglation to total consolidated net sales.

Operating income

Operating income is a measure of the performandbeofGroup’s business sectors and has been us#tk by
Group as its key external and internal managenmeiitator for many years. Foreign exchange gaind@ssks
are included in operating income, as are chang#eeifair value of financial instruments that dd guoalify for
hedge accounting when they relate to operatingsitem

Other business income and expense

Other business income and expense mainly includeements in provisions for claims and litigation and
environmental provisions, gains and losses on dmpoof assets, impairment losses, restructurirgisco
incurred upon the disposal or discontinuation adrafions and the costs of workforce reduction mesgsu
Business income

Business income includes all income and expendes tlhan borrowing costs and other financial incamd
expense, the Group’s share in net income of agegciand income taxes.

Net financial expense

Net financial expense includes borrowing and ofii@ncing costs, income from cash and cash equitgle

interest cost for pension and other post-employrbenifit plans, net of the return on plan assetd, ciher
financial income and expense such as exchange gathksses and bank charges.
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Income taxes

Current income tax is the estimated amount of tgaple in respect of income for a given periodcwated by
reference to the tax rates that have been enactsdbstantively enacted at the balance sheet phig,any
adjustments to current taxes recorded in previman€ial periods.

Deferred taxes are recorded using the balance $labdity method for temporary differences betwettre
carrying amount of assets and liabilities and tkeeir basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilitiesnaeasured at
the tax rates expected to apply to the period wherasset is realized or the liability settled,doben the tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively ehacttfie balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only if it issatered probable that there will be sufficienufet taxable
income against which the temporary difference carutilized. They are reviewed at each balance gietet
and written down to the extent that it is no longesbable that there will be sufficient taxabledne against
which the temporary difference can be utilizeddétermining whether to recognize deferred tax adesttax
loss carryforwards, the Group applies a range ibéra that take into account the probable recoymsgiod
based on business plan projections and the strédtegye long-term recovery of tax losses appliedeach
country.

No deferred tax liability is recognized in respettindistributed earnings of subsidiaries thatrereintended to
be distributed.

In accordance with interpretation SIC 21, a defkiex liability is recognized for brands acquiredai business
combination.

Deferred taxes are recognized as income or exgartee income statement, except when they relateetos
that are recognized directly in equity, in whiclseahe deferred tax is also recognized in equity.
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by divideigncome by the weighted average number of sharssue
during the period, excluding treasury stock.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adgusgrnings per share (see Note 25) and the avexagber of
shares in issue for the effects of all dilutivegotial common shares, such as stock options angedidie bonds.
The calculation is performed using the treasurgkstoethod, which assumes that the proceeds frorexireise of
dilutive instruments are assigned on a priorityd#sthe purchase of common shares in the market.

Recurring net income

Recurring net income corresponds to income afteama minority interests but before capital gainksses, asset
impairment losses, material non-recurring provisiand the related tax and minority interests.

The method used for calculating recurring net inedsrexplained in Note 24.
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

EBITDA
EBITDA corresponds to operating income before dggtien and amortization.

The method used for calculating EBITDA is explaimedlote 24.

Return on capital employed

Return on capital employed (ROCE) corresponds moi@ized operating income adjusted for changelsdrstope
of consolidation, expressed as a percentage ofasgats at the period-end. Total assets inclutpraperty, plant
and equipment, working capital, net goodwill anHeotintangible assets, but exclude deferred tagt@ssising
from non-amortizable brands and land.

Cash flow from operations

Cash flow from operations corresponds to net caslergted from operating activities before the irhpachanges
in working capital requirement, changes in curfenies and movements in provisions for other litddi and
charges and deferred taxes. Cash flow from opesattoadjusted for the effect of material non-rengrprovision

charges.

The method used for calculating cash flow from afiens is explained in Note 24.

Cash flow from operations before tax on capital gais and losses and non-recurring provisions

This item corresponds to cash flow from operati®mss the tax effect of asset disposals and of ecuring
provision charges and reversals.

The method used for calculating cash flow from apiens before tax on capital gains and losses andeturring
provisions is explained in Note 24.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

In compliance with IFRS 8, segment informationeefs the Group’s internal presentation of operatesylts
to senior management. The Group has chosen tornpresgment information by Sector and Division, with
any further aggregation compared with the inteprakentation. There were no changes in the present
segment information in 2011 compared with priorrgea
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NOTE 2 - CHANGES IN GROUP STRUCTURE

Changes in the number of consolidated companies

France Outside Total
France
Fully consolidated companies
At January 1, 2011 179 878 1,057
Newly consolidated companies 5 25 30
Merged companies (10) (134) (144)
Deconsolidated companies @) (2) 3)
Change in consolidation method 1 1
At December 31, 2011 173 768 941
Proportionately consolidated companies
At January 1, 2011 2 23 25
Newly consolidated companies 3 3
Deconsolidated companies 0
Change in consolidation method 1 1
At December 31, 2011 2 27 29
Companies accounted for by the equity method
At January 1, 2011 7 49 56
Newly consolidated companies 29 29
Merged companies (3) 3)
Deconsolidated companies 1) (2) 3)
Change in consolidation method (2) 2)
At December 31, 2011 6 71 77
TOTAL at January 1, 2011 188 950 1,138
TOTAL at December 31, 2011 181 866 1,047

Significant changes in Group structure

2011

On November 30, 2011, the Group's Abrasives Diviggpanded its presence in South America by acgliri
Abrasivos Argentinos S.A. and Dancan S.A. and tkeibsidiaries. The two groups are specialized & th
production of coated abrasives and masking tapgesy fave been consolidated as from December 1, 2011

On August 11, 2011, the Group signed an agreemigmtBelgian group Bekaert for the whole acquisitadrits
Specialty Films subsidiaries. This business, opegatinder the name Solar Gard, is specialized & th
development, manufacturing and distribution of eddilms used on the habitat market, the automatiaeket
and various industrial applications. The Solar Gsulisidiaries have been consolidated as from Nogerhp

2011.
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On July 25, 2011, the Group signed an agreemert Wik building materials distributor Wolseley foreth
acquisition of its British Build Center network. iStbusiness has been consolidated as from Noveinl2611.

On May 31, 2011, Saint-Gobain announced that it sigded an agreement to acquire Sezal Glass Limsited
float glass business in India. The business wasdmlated at June 30, 2011.

In first-half 2011, Saint-Gobain signed an agreenfienthe buy-out of Alver by the Group’s Packagiggctor
(Verallia). A State-owned company, Alver is one Alfjeria’s leading glass packaging manufacturers and
distributors. It has been consolidated as frons#wnd half of 2011.

On June 20, 2011, Saint-Gobain announced the puestpent of the initial public offering of a minoriigterest
in Verallia due to very adverse market conditions.

2010

During the ¥ semester of 2010, the Group acquired a 43.7%eisitén Japanese insulation company MAG
from Japan-based Taiheiyo Cement Corporation. Busly consolidated on a proportionate basis, MAG ha
been fully consolidated since April 1, 2010. Thiansaction was treated as a step acquisition utieer
provisions of IFRS 3R, the application of which hremmaterial impact on either the consolidated i@asheet
or the income statement. A further 10% stake wagsliged in the second half of the year, raising@reup’s
interest in the company to 97.4%.

In December 2010, the Group acquired a 50% intémeSage Electrochromics, which was consolidatethiey
proportionate method as from December 1. The pianés accounting for the business combination was
completed and the final goodwill amount was detaediduring 2011.

Also in 2010, an agreement was signed for the &fatbe advanced ceramics business to US-based Taqrs
subject to approval of the transaction by the mtévauthorities. The business was classified ietasand
liabilities held for sale from June 28, 2010, ttedwhen the sale process was announced. The dispas
completed on December 31, 2010 for an amount afoappately $245 million, following anti-trust appral.
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Impact on the consolidated balance sheet

The impact on the balance sheet at December 31,d0hanges in Group structure and in consolidatiethods

was as follows:

Companies Companies Total
consolidated for  removed from
the first time the scope ¢
(in EUR millions) consolidatior
Impact on assets
Non-current assets 556 (19) 537
Inventories 106 (22) 84
Trade accounts receivable 119 @) 112
Other current assets excluding cash and cash deptiva 15 4 11
796 (52) 744
Impact on equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ equity and minority interests (30) 9)(2
Provisions for pensions and other employee benefits 2 2
Non-current liabilities 8 8
Trade accounts payable 42 8) 34
Other payables and accrued expenses 34 (5) 29
87 (43) 44
Enterprise value of consolidated companies
acquired/divested (a) 709 (9) 700
Impact on consolidated net debt*
Impact on cash and cash equivalents 21 (6) 15
Impact on net debt excluding cash and cash equitsalb) 43 @) 42
22 5 27
Acquisitions/disposals of shares in consolidated cganies
net of cash acquired/divested (a) - (b) 666 8) 658

* Corresponding to the debt, short-term creditlfaes and cash and cash equivalents of acquireeltitd companies.
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NOTE 3 — GOODWILL

2011 2010

(in EUR millions)
At January 1

Gross value 11,560 11,178

Accumulated impairment (530) (438)
Net 11,030 10,740
Movements during the year

Changes in Group structure 248 (19)

Impairment (309) (87)

Translation adjustments 72 396
Total 11 290
At December 31

Gross value 11,903 11,560

Accumulated impairment (862) (530)
Net 11,041 11,030

In 2011, movements in goodwill primarily reflect€d changes in the scope of consolidation, with the
acquisition of Solar Gard by the Innovative Matkri&ector and Build Center by the Building Disttibn
Sector, and (ii) the impairment of goodwill on GypsDivision in North America and on Building Didirition
Sector.

In 2010, movements in goodwill mainly correspondedhe €396 million increase in translation adjustis,
primarily concerning the US dollar and the pouretlstg. Impairments for the period primarily conced the
Building Distribution Sector.
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NOTE 4 — OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Patents Non- Software  Develop- Other Total
amortizable ment costs

(in EUR millions) brands
At January 1, 2010

Gross value 114 2,674 737 62 273 3,860

Accumulated amortization and impairment (98) (561) )(35 (168) (862)
Net 16 2,674 176 27 105 2,998
Movements during the year

Changes in Group structure 5 6 4 9 16

Acquisitions 49 4 17 70

Disposals 2 2 4

Translation adjustments 1 73 7 8 89

Amortization and impairment 2) (80) 9 (12) (102
Total movements 4 73 (20) 9 21 69
At December 31, 2010

Gross value 124 2,747 798 60 301 4,030

Accumulated amortization and impairment (104) (642) 2)(4 (175) (963)
Net 20 2,747 156 18 126 3,067
Movements during the year

Changes in Group structure 13 10 24 47

Acquisitions 3 59 19 11 92

Disposals (@) D)

Translation adjustments 31 Q) 1 31

Amortization and impairment ?3) (70) (6) 9 (88)
Total movements 13 31 3) 14 26 81
At December 31, 2011

Gross value 141 2,778 834 80 334 4,167

Accumulated amortization and impairment (108) (681) 8)(4 (182) (1,019)
Net 33 2,778 153 32 152 3,148

The “Other” column includes amortizable manufactgrbrands totaling €45 million at December 31, 2011

(December 31, 2010: €47 million).
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NOTE 5 — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and Buildings Machinery Assets Total
quarries and under
equipment  construc-
(in EUR millions) tion
At January 1, 2010
Gross value 2,188 7,921 19,842 1,034 30,985
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (350) (4,021)(13,304) (10) (17,685)
Net 1,838 3,900 6,538 1,024 13,300
Movements during the year
Changes in Group structure and reclassifications 93 12) ( (20) 2 63
Acquisitions 52 82 299 1,020 1,453
Disposals (23) (41 (38) (6) (108)
Translation adjustments 76 155 301 53 585
Depreciation and impairment (33) (300) (1,196) (37) &6)5
Transfers 221 836 (1,057) 0
Total movements 165 105 182 (25) 27
At December 31, 2010
Gross value 2,397 8,338 21,047 1,042 32,824
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (394) (4,333)(14,327) (43) (19,097)
Net 2,003 4,005 6,720 999 13,727
Movements during the year
Changes in Group structure and reclassifications 22 26 1 94 4 238
Acquisitions 73 100 333 1,448 1,954
Disposals (31) (29 (38) 4 (102)
Translation adjustments 8 (33 (59) (13) 97)
Depreciation and impairment (33) (296) (1,161) (5) (5)49
Transfers 132 812 (944) 0
Total movements 39 0 (19) 478 498
At December 31, 2011
Gross value 2,462 8,529 21,660 1,518 34,169
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (420) (4,524)(14,959) (41) (19,944)
Net 2,042 4,005 6,701 1,477 14,225

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment dgr2011 included assets acquired under financeddas@an
amount of €18 million (2010: €3 million). Thesedimce leases are not included in the cash flowrstait in
accordance with IAS 7. At December 31, 2011, tptalperty, plant and equipment acquired under financ
leases amounted to €119 million (December 31, 20180 million) (see Note 26).
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NOTE 6 — INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

2011 2010

(in EUR millions)
At January 1

Equity in associates 120 105

Goodwiill 17 18
Investments in associates 137 123
Movements during the year

Changes in Group structure 31 0

Translation adjustments (3) 9

Transfers, share issues and other movements 0 3

Dividends paid (6) €))

Share in net income of associates 8 5
Total movements 30 14
At December 31

Equity in associates 129 120

Goodwiill 38 17
Investments in associates 167 137

Investments in associates include shares in Coragadustrial EI Volcan, which is listed on the Sagbd de
Chile stock exchange. At December 31, 2011, theketaralue of the shares was higher than the caryin
amount of the Group’s equity in the company’s resiess.

Changes in scope of consolidation correspond ®mibst part to previously fully consolidated coniparthat
were accounted for by the equity method in 201b¥dhg the Group's loss of exclusive control.

Net sales recorded in the individual financial esta¢énts of associates totaled €858 million in 2011
(2010: €799 million) and their aggregate net inedotaled €27 million (2010: €17 million). At Decber 31,
2011, total assets and liabilities of these comggmaimounted to €941 million and €489 million, resipely
(December 31, 2010: €873 million and €467 million).
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NOTE 7 — OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Available-for-  Capitalized Pension plar Total
sale and othe loans anc surpluses
securities deposits

(in EUR millions)
At January 1, 2010

Gross value 59 231 96 386

Provisions for impairment in value (31) (43) (74)
Net 28 188 96 312
Movements during the year

Changes in Group structure ?3) ?3)

Increases/(decreases) 4) 15 (60) (49)

Movements in provisions for impairment in value (@) 3) ( 4)

Translation adjustments 5 8 1 14

Transfers and other movements 2 2
Total movements 3) 22 (59) (40)
At December 31, 2010

Gross value 43 218 37 298

Provisions for impairment in value (18) 8) (26)
Net 25 210 37 272
Movements during the year

Changes in Group structure 8 @) 7

Increases/(decreases) 4) 70 14 80

Movements in provisions for impairment in value (@) 1) ( 2)

Translation adjustments (8) 1 @)

Transfers and other movements 1 4) 3)
Total movements 4 56 15 75
At December 31, 2011

Gross value 48 273 52 373

Provisions for impairment in value (19) ) (26)
Net 29 266 52 347

The change in impairment provisions on other nameru assets in 2011 reflects €3 million in addisio

(2010: €6 million) and €1 million in reversals (D €2 million).

As discussed in Note 1, available-for-sale andradbeurities are measured at fair value.
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NOTE 8 — INVENTORIES

December 31 December 31

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Gross value

Raw materials 1,634 1,48¢

Work in progress 279 253

Finished goods 5,027 4,55C
Gross inventories 6,940 6,292
Provisions for impairment in value

Raw materials (132 (125)

Work in progress (8 (6)

Finished goods (323) (320)
Provisions for impairment in value (463) (451)
Net 6,477 5,841

In 2011, cost of sales came to €31,763 million R&B0,059 million).

Impairment losses on inventories recorded in thell20ncome statement totaled €138 million
(2010: €105 million). Impairment reversals, duéntreases in the net realizable value of invenspaenounted
to €111 million in 2011 (2010: €78 million) and werecorded as a deduction from impairment lossetho
year.
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NOTE 9 — TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

December 31 December 31

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Gross value 5,821 5,53C
Provisions for impairment in value (480) (492)
Trade accounts receivable 5,341 5,038
Advances to suppliers 550 476
Prepaid payroll taxes 25 25
Other prepaid and recoverable taxes (other
than income tax) 380 385
Other 456 369
France 100 82
Other Western European countries 168 144
North America 19 26
Emerging countries and Asia 169 117
Provisions for impairment in value 3) (7)
Other receivables 1,408 1,248

The change in impairment provisions for trade ant®ueceivable in 2011 reflects €87 million in diddis
(2010: €72 million) and €101 million in reversg910: €90 million) — resulting from recoveriesves| as write-
offs. Bad debt write-offs are also reported unler ¢aption, for €94 million (2010: €102 million).

Trade and other accounts receivable are mainlywdtién one year, with the result that their cargyiamount
approximates fair value.

The Group considers that its exposure to concamisabf credit risk is limited due to its diversifi business line-
up, broad customer base and global presence. Bastadie receivables are regularly monitored aatlyzed, and
provisions are set aside when appropriate. Netcuestrade receivables amounted to €843 millidbetember 31,
2011, after deducting provisions of €411 milliore@mber 31, 2010: €879 million, after deducting/jsions of
€411 million), including €198 million over three mtbs past due (December 31, 2010: €196 million).

NOTE 10 — EQUITY
Number of shares outstanding

At December 31, 2011, Compagnie de Saint-Gobaigfstal stock comprised 535,563,723 shares of common
stock with a par value of €4 each, all in the satass (December 31, 2010: 530,836,441 shares).

During 2011, 4,497,772 new shares were issued tob®es of the 2011 Group Savings Plan at a price of
€33.42, representing total proceeds of €150 million
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At the Annual General Meeting of June 4, 2009, etnaiders authorized the Board of Directors of Caynpade
Saint-Gobain to:

« Grant stock options exercisable for shares reptiegenp to 3% of capital stock on the Meeting date,

14,972,627 options exercisable for the same nunobeshares (19th resolution/38-month authorization

commencing June 4, 2009).

» Make performance share grants representing up toflie capital stock on the Meeting date, i.entyaf
4,990,875 shares (20th resolution/38-month authatioiz commencing June 4, 2009). If this authomatiere
to be used, the performance shares would be deducta the shares available for the stock opti@mpl

The Board of Directors used these authorizatigran(November 19, 2009 to grant 1,479,460 stockoeptand an
estimated 1,982,750 performance shares, (i) onehdrer 18, 2010 to grant 1,144,730 stock options and
estimated 737,550 performance shares and (iii) omehber 24, 2011 to grant 482,150 stock options and
estimated 942,920 performance shares.

At the Annual General Meeting of June 9, 2011, efnaiders authorized the Board of Directors of Caynpade
Saint-Gobain to:

* Issue, on one or several occasions, up to 106@BMew shares with or without pre-emptive or piyori
subscription rights for existing shareholders (%6tthi4th resolutions/26-month authorization comnrengune
9, 2011).

» Issue, on one or several occasions, up to 13,200@@ shares to members of the Group Savings B&h (
resolution/26-month authorization commencing Jur021).

If all outstanding stock options were to be exedtiand all outstanding performance shares weredn with the
issue of new shares, this would potentially hawe effect of increasing the number of shares ouisignto
563,918,751. In addition, if the authorizationsaiiégd above were to be used in full, this woulteptally have
the effect of increasing the number of shares and&tg to 691,641,818.

At the Annual General Meeting of June 9, 2011 ,Bbard of Directors was also authorized to issuekstearrants
in the event of a public tender offer for the Comps shares, in accordance with the French Act afdd 31, 2006
on takeover bids (17th resolution). Under this axitlation, the Group may issue up to €531 millicortv of stock
(excluding premiums), representing 132,700,000eshar

Treasury stock

Saint-Gobain shares held by Compagnie de SaintiGolad Saint-Gobain Corporation are shown as a
deduction from shareholders’ equity under “Treasstgck” at historical cost. At December 31, 2011,

9,358,027 shares were held in treasury (Decemhe2®@D: 5,113,897).

In 2011, 10,180,347 shares were bought back omtr&et (2010: 1,105,161) and 5,936,217 shares sa@de
upon exercise stock options (2010: 461,473). Noeshaere cancelled in either 2011 or 2010.

The liquidity contract set up with Exane BNP Pasiloa November 16, 2007 was rolled over in 2011 201D.

This contract complies with the Code of Ethics dddpby the Association Francaise des Entreprises

d'Investissement (AFEI) recognized by the Autoridés Marchés Financiers (AMF). During 2011,
5,578,490 shares were purchased under the co@tD: 5,008,989 shares) for a total of €214 mmlland
5,440,041 shares were sold (2010: 4,996,279 shimes)total of €213 million. In view of their highliquid
nature, funds allocated to the liquidity contraat bot invested in Saint-Gobain stock are clagsifie cash and
cash equivalents.

32



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statement

NOTE 11 — STOCK OPTION PLANS
Compagnie de Saint-Gobain has stock option plaasadle to certain employees.

Stock options are exercisable for Saint-Gobain eshat a price based on the average share pricthdor
20 trading days preceding the grant date. Sinc®,188 stock options have been granted at a disdouthie
average price.

Since the November 2007 plan, all stock optionssatgect to a four-year vesting period. Under eaiplans,
the vesting period was three years for non-resgdant four years for tax residents. Options musxeecised
within ten years of the date of grant. All rights dptions are forfeited if the holder leaves theupr;, unless
expressly agreed otherwise by both the ChairmanCinef Executive Officer of Compagnie de Saint-Goba
and the Appointments Committee of the Board of Qoes.

The options granted in 2002 were exercisable f@stiegy shares, while those granted between 2003280d
were exercisable for new shares. For plans launshex@® 2008, the origin of the shares is determatethe
latest at the end of the four-year vesting peribdn option holder were to die or any of the eggmtovided for
in the General Tax Code were to occur during the-j@ar vesting period, only options exercisablerfew
shares would vest.

Until 2008, options were subject to a performanmedition for certain categories of grantees. The2@010
and 2011 plans are subject to a performance conditir all grantees. For options granted in 2016 2011,
the vesting condition is based on stock marketoperénce.

Movements relating to stock options outstandingdf0 and 2011 are summarized below:

Average
EUR 4 par exercise price
value shares (in EUR)
Options outstanding at January 1, 2010 28,663,342 41.23
Options granted 1,144,730 35.19
Options exercised (511,541) 32.74
Options forfeited (547,883 34.11
Options outstanding at December 31, 2010 28,748,648 41.27
Options granted 482,150 31.22
Options exercised (724,853) 33.84
Options forfeited (2,706,502) 38.97
Options outstanding at December 31, 2011 25,799,443 41.54

Including 1,473,356 options under the 2001 plarciviexpired on November 21, 2011 and 1,233,146 mwptio
under the 2007 and 2008 plans that were cancelledodthe performance targets not being met.
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Stock option expense recorded in the income statearaounted to €14 million in 2011 (2010: €26 roit).
The fair value of options granted in 2011 amounte€ll million.

The table below summarizes information about stiations outstanding at December 31, 2011

Options exercisable Options not exercisable Toual optlpns
outstanding
Grantdate [ Exercise price  Numberof  Weighted average Exercise price Numberof  Number of Type of options
(inEUR) options contractual life (in EUR) options options
(in months)
2002 21.28 1,106,802 11 1,106,802 Purchase
2003 32.26 2,719,431 23 2,719,431 Subscription
2004 39.39 3,955,094 35 3,955,094 Subscription
2005 41.34 4,051,181 47 4,051,181 Subscription
2006 52.52 4,306,454 59 4,306,454 Subscription
2007 64.72 3,403,171 71 3,403,171 Subscription
2008 83 25.88 3,151,370 3,151,370 Subscription or Purchase
2009 95 36.34 1,479,060 1,479,060 Subscription or Purchase
2010 107 35.19 1,144,730 1,144,730 Subscription or Purchase
2011 119 31.22 482,150 482,150 Subscription or Purchase
Total 19,542,133 6,257,310 25,799,443

At December 31, 2011, 19,542,133 stock options weercisable (at an average price of €45.08) and
6,257,310 options (average price €30.47) had rtoigsted.

NOTE 12 — GROUP SAVINGS PLAN ("PEG")

The PEG Group Savings Plan is an employee stoathpse plan open to all Group employees in Franddran
most other countries where the Group does busigéigible employees must have completed a miniméithree
months’ service with the Group. The purchase poicthe shares, as set by the Chairman and Chiefuiixe
Officer on behalf of the Board of Directors, copends to the average of the opening share pricetedwver
the 20 trading days preceding the pricing date.

In 2011, the Group issued 4,497,772 shares witlr &glue of €4 (2010: 4,993,989 shares) to mentdidgre PEG,
for a total of €150 million (2010: €143 million).

In some years, as well as the standard plans,agsérplans are offered to employees in countrieavthis is
allowed under local law and tax rules.

= Standard plans

Under the standard plans, eligible employees dezenf the opportunity to invest in Saint-Gobaircktat a 20%
discount. The stock is subject to a five or tenryeek-up, except following the occurrence of certavents. The
compensation cost recorded in accordance with IZRSmeasured by reference to the fair value ofseodnt
offered on restricted stock (i.e. stock subjea tock-up). The cost of the lock-up for the empbigdefined as the
cost of a two-step strategy that involves firstirsglthe restricted stock forward five or ten yearsd then
purchasing the same number of shares on the spkétaad financing the purchase with debt. Thedwarrg cost
is estimated at the rate that would be charged litgn& to an individual with an average risk profoe a general
purpose five- or ten-year consumer loan repaydbieturity (see Note 1 for details of the calcoiali
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The standard plan cost recorded in the incomenséateamounted to €6.7 million in 2011 (2010: €2illion), net
of the lock-up cost for employees of €20.6 mill{@10: €21.1 million).

The following table shows the main features of skendard plans, the amounts invested in the pladstlze
valuation assumptions applied in 2011 and 2010.

2011 2010
Plan characteristics
Grant date 28 March 29 March
Plan duration (in years) 50r10 50r10
Benchmark price (in EUR) 41.77 35.87
Purchase price (in EUR) 3342 28.70
Discount (in %) 20.00% 20.00%

(a) Total discount on the grant date (in %) 22.50% 20.12%
Employee investments (EUR millions) 150.3 143.3
Total number of shares purchased 4,497,772 4,993,989
Valuation assumptions
Interest rate paid by employees (1) 6.50% 6.33%
5-year risk-free interest rate 2.86% 2.29%
Repo rate 0.40% 0.25%

(b) Lock-up discount (in %) 16.97% 17.73%
Total cost to the Group (in %) (a-b) 5.53% 2.39%

(1) A 0.5-point decline in borrowing costs for the dogpe would have an impact of €2.2 million on tB&2 cost as calculated in accordance with IFRS 2.

= Leveraged plan

No leveraged plans were set up in 2011 or 2010.

NOTE 13 - PERFORMANCE SHARE PLANS

Various performance share plans have been set 8gibitGobain since 2009. As of December 31, 2failf,such
plans were outstanding:

* A worldwide plan authorized by Saint-Gobain’s BoafdDirectors on November 19, 2009 whereby eligible
employees and officers of the Group in France d&mdaal were each awarded seven performance shies. T
shares are subject to a performance condition dhkdedorfeited if the grantee leaves the Groufobethe end
of the vesting period. In all, an estimated 1,369 ferformance shares may vest under the plaollew$:

- For eligible Group employees in France, Spain &y, lthe vesting period will end on March 29, 2@t®i
the shares will be delivered on March 30, 2012. Vdsting period will be followed by a two-year legg,
such that the shares may not be sold until Marchi2814 except in the case of the grantee’s death or
disability;

- For eligible Group employees in all other counirtee vesting period will end on March 30, 2014 #rel
shares will be delivered on March 31, 2014. No {opkperiod will apply.

» A performance share plan for certain managers anidrsexecutives of the Saint-Gobain Group in Fezared
abroad authorized by the Board of Directors on Kdyer 19, 2009. The shares are subject to a penfaena
condition and will be forfeited if the grantee leavthe Group before the end of the vesting periodall,
622,790 performance shares have been awarded. tExrefhe performance targets, the plan terms and
conditions are the same as for the worldwide perémice share plan for all employees.
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» A performance share plan for certain managers anidrsexecutives of the Saint-Gobain Group in Fecared
abroad authorized by the Board of Directors on Mdyer 18, 2010. The shares are subject to a penfaena
condition and will be forfeited if the grantee leawthe Group before the end of the vesting perlodall, an
estimated 737,550 performance shares may vest thedpian, as follows:

- For eligible Group employees in France, the vegtiergod will end on March 29, 2013 and the shariéis w
be delivered on March 30, 2013. The vesting peniidbe followed by a two-year lock-up, such thhaét
shares may not be sold until March 31, 2015 exodpie case of the grantee’s death or disability;

- For eligible Group employees outside France, tiséing: period will end on March 30, 2015 and theabta
will be delivered on March 31, 2015. No lock-upipémwill apply.

» A performance share plan for certain managers anidrsexecutives of the Saint-Gobain Group in Feaared
abroad authorized by the Board of Directors on Kudyer 24, 2011. The shares are subject to a penfimena
condition and will be forfeited if the grantee leavthe Group before the end of the vesting periodall,
942,920 performance shares may vest under thegddallows:

- For eligible Group employees in France, the vegtiergod will end on March 29, 2014 and the shariéis w
be delivered on March 30, 2014. The vesting pendidbe followed by a two-year lock-up, such thhaéet
shares may not be sold until March 30, 2016 exoepie case of the grantee’s death or disability;

- For eligible Group employees outside France, tiséing period will end on March 30, 2016 and theehta
will be delivered on March 31, 2016. No lock-upipemwill apply.

The table below shows changes in the number obpeaince share rights:

Number of
rights
Number of performance share rights at December 32009 1,982,750
Performance share rights granted in November 2010 7,5%0
Shares issued/delivered 0
Lapsed and canceled rights 0
Number of performance share rights at December 32010 2,720,300
Performance share rights granted in November 2011 2,990
Shares issued/delivered (833)
Lapsed and canceled rights 0
Number of performance share rights at December 32011 3,662,387

The fair value of the performance shares corresptmthe Saint-Gobain share price on the grantldase(i) the
value of dividends not payable on the shares duhagesting period, and (ii) as for the PEG, thssdiscount on
restricted stock (i.e. stock subject to a four-yksuk-up), which has been estimated at around 30Pe

compensation cost is recognized over the two aryear vesting period of the performance shares.

The cost recorded in the income statement for ttvesg@lans amounted to €18 million in 2011 (20118 #nillion).
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NOTE 14 — PROVISIONS FOR PENSIONS AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

December 31 December 31

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Pensions 2,544 2,107
Length-of-service awards 237 224
Post-employment healthcare benefits 504 412

Total provisions for pensions and other post-emplapent

benefit abligations 3,285 2,743
Healthcare benefits 46 49
Long-term disability benefits 29 30
Other long-term benefits 98 108
Provisions for pensions and other employee benefits 3,458 2,930

The following table shows defined benefit obligasounder pension and other post-employment benefit
obligations and the related plan assets:

December 31 December 31

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Provisions for pensions and other post-employmenefit 3,285 2,743
obligations

Pension plan surpluses (52) (37)
Net pension and other post-employment benefit oblagions 3,233 2,70€
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Changes in pension and other post-employment liestgigations are as follows:

Pension ant Fair value of

Other  Net pensior

other post-  plan assets and other
employment post-
benefit employment
obligations benefit
obligations
(in EUR millions)
At January 1, 2010 7,999 (5,384) 72 2,687
Movements during the year
Service cost 174 174
Interest cost/return on plan assets 454 (355) 99
Contributions to pension (375) (375
Employee contributions (21) (2D
Actuarial gains and losses and asset ceiling 330 )(180 (8) 142
Currency translation adjustment 367 (247) 2 122
Benefit payments (429) 346 (83)
Past service cost 8 8
Changes in Group structure 10 (5) 5
Curtailments/settlements (21) (22)
Other (3) (28) (32)
Total movements 893 (840) (34) 19
At December 31, 2010 8,892 (6,224) 38 2,706
Movements during the year
Service cost 180 180
Interest cost/return on plan assets 438 (415) 23
Contributions to pension (239) (239)
Employee contributions (19) (29)
Actuarial gains and losses and asset ceiling 595 112 3) ( 704
Currency translation adjustment 236 (159) 77
Benefit payments (451) 362 (89
Past service cost (86) (86)
Changes in Group structure 2 2
Curtailments/settlements (22) 5 a7
Other 36 (16) (29) (9)
Total movements 928 (369) 32) 527
At December 31, 2011 9,820 (6,593) 6 3,233
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The following tables show the funded status of mansnd other post-employment benefit obligatioys b
geographic area:

December 31, 2011 France Other Western North America Rest of the Net total
European World
(in EUR millions) countries
Defined benefit obligation - funded plans 403 5,210 3,026 139 8,778
Defined benefit obligation - unfunded plans 227 268 507 40 1,042
Fair value of plan assets (182) (4,363) (1,942) (106) ,59%)
Deficit/(surplus) 448 1,115 1,591 73 3,227
Asset ceiling 6
Insured plans 0
Net pension and other post-employment benefit oblégions 3,233
December 31, 2010 France Other Western North America Rest of the Net total
European World
(in EUR millions) countries
Defined benefit obligation - funded plans 399 4,941 2,506 129 7,975
Defined benefit obligation - unfunded plans 214 269 400 4 917
Fair value of plan assets (182) (4,178) 1,770) (94) 226),
Deficit/(surplus) 431 1,032 1,136 69 2,668
Asset ceiling 9
Insured plans 29
Net pension and other post-employment benefit oblégions 2,706
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Description of defined benefit plans
The Group’s main defined benefit plans are as fedto

In France, in addition to length-of-service awariigre are three defined benefit plans all of wrach final
salary plans. These plans were closed to new datbgrthe companies concerned between 1969 and 1997

In Germany, retirement plans provide pensions aathdand disability benefits for employees. Thesag
have been closed to new entrants since 1996.

In the Netherlands, ceilings have been introducedi€fined benefit supplementary pension plansy@amdhich
they are converted into defined contribution plans.

In the United Kingdom, retirement plans provide giens as well as death and permanent disabilitefiten
These defined benefit plans — which are based oploymes’ average salaries over their final years of
employment — have been closed to new entrants 2b@e.

In the United States and Canada, the Group’s difiemefit plans are final salary plans. Since Jania2001,
new employees have been offered a defined conribptan.

Provisions for other long-term employee benefitoanted to €173 million at December 31, 2011 (Decamb
31, 2010: €187 million), and covered all other emypk benefits, notably long-service awards in Feanc
jubilees in Germany and employee benefits in théddnStates. The related defined benefit obligai®n
generally calculated on an actuarial basis usiags#ime rules as for pension obligations.

Measurement of pension and other post-employment befit obligations

Pensions and other post-employment benefit obtigatare determined on an actuarial basis usingrtijected
unit credit method, based on estimated final sadari

The Group's total pension and other post-employnemiefit obligations amounted to €9,820 million at
December 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010: €8,892 millio

Plan assets

For defined benefit plans, plan assets have bemgrgssively built up by contributions, primarily tine United
States, the United Kingdom and Germany. Contrilmstipaid by the Group totaled €239 million in 2011
(2010: €375 million). The actual return on plaseis came to €303 million for the year (2010: €5@%on).

The fair value of plan assets — which came to €5 88llion at December 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010:
€6,224 million) — is deducted from the Group's deti benefit obligation, as estimated using thegatef unit
credit method, in order to calculate the unfundekbation to be covered by a provision.

Plan assets are mainly composed of equities (42%}ands (37%), with the remaining 21% investedther
asset classes.
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Projected contributions to pension plans for 20 2estimated at around €400 million.

Actuarial assumptions used to measure defined benebbligations and plan assets

Assumptions related to mortality, employee turncaed future salary increases take into accouné¢baomic
conditions specific to each country and company.

The assumptions used in 2011 for the main plans agfollows:

France Other European countries United States

Euro zone United Kingdom

(in %)

Discount rate 4.75% 4.75% 4.65% 4.50%
Salary increases 2.40% 1,80% a 2,60% 3.30% 3.00%
Expected return on plan assets 5.00%  4,00% a 5,25% 5%05.8 8.75%
Inflation rate 1.80% 1,50% & 2,00% 2.80% 2.10%

The assumptions used in 2010 for the Group's mamspvere as follows:

France Other European countries United States

Euro zone United Kingdom

(in %)

Discount rate 4.75% 4.75% 5.45% 5.50%
Salary increases 2.40% 1.90% a 2.70% 3.70% 3.00%
Expected return on plan assets 5.00% 4.15% a 5.25% 0%6.2 8.75%
Inflation rate 1.80% 1.50% a 1.90% 3.20% 2.00%

Discount rates were set by region or country basedbserved bond rates at December 31, 2011.

A 0.5-point decrease in the discount rate wouldl lEaan increase in defined benefit obligationsaaiund
€210 million for the North American plans, €150 lioih for the euro-zone plans and €290 million foe UK
plans. A 0.5-point increase in the inflation rateuhd lead to an overall increase in defined beradfligations
of approximately €480 million.

The same assumptions concerning mortality, employeever and interest rates are used to deterthiee
Group's defined benefit obligations for other ldegn employee benefits. In the United States, aesr
healthcare costs are projected to rise by 7.77%esar. A 1-point increase in this rate would lea@n increase
in the related defined benefit obligation of arod@ad million.

The inflation rate used to adjust pension benédithe United Kingdom has been changed. The Graag the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) in accordance with thg 2010 decision of the UK government. The £7dionil
impact of the change is included in “Past servigst'cin the table presenting changes in pension paost
employment benefit obligations.
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Expected rates of return on plan assets are estinmt country and by plan, taking into accountdHterent
classes of assets held by the plan and the outfottke various financial markets. In 2011, resiliénancial
markets in the US and UK led to a €303 million @ase in plan assets versus an estimated €415mtillised
on the expected return on the assets. A 50 bpsgehianthe estimated return on plan assets woule lsav
roughly €30 million impact on profit for the year.

Actuarial gains and losses

In 2006, the Group elected to apply the optionlaiste under IAS 19 and to record in equity actuay@ans and
losses and the change in the asset ceiling. In,287@4 million was recognized in equity (increase i
provisions). This amount corresponds to €595 nniliio actuarial differences, including a €6 milliexperience
adjustment (corresponding to the effects of diffiees between previous actuarial assumptions and hasa
actually occurred), €3 million due to a loweringtioé asset ceiling, and a €112 million decreag#an assets.

The defined benefit obligation, asset ceiling arpegience adjustments recognized since the apiolicaf the
option available under IAS 19 are as follows:

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Defined benefit obligation 9,820 8,892 7,999 6,803 7,69¢
Fair value of plan assets (6,593) (6,224) (5,384) (4,976) (6,405)
Plan (surplus)/deficit 3,227 2,668 2,615 1,827 1,294
Experience actuarial gain (loss) as a % of thendeffi 0.1 (0.4) 0.5) 0.4 0.7

benefit obligation

Plan surpluses and the asset ceiling
When plan assets exceed the defined benefit oldigathe excess is recognized in other non-curassets

under “Plan surplus” (see Note 7) provided thatoitresponds to future economic benefits. The assiéng
corresponds to the maximum future economic beréfianges in the asset ceiling are recognized iityequ

Contributions to insured plans
This item corresponds to amounts payable in theréuto insurance companies under the externallgedn

pension plans for Group employees in Spain andewt829 million at December 31, 2010. These amounts
were fully repaid at June 30, 2011.
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Employee benefits expense

The cost of the Group's pension and other post@mpnt benefit plans (excluding other employee btxés
as follows:

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Service cost 180 174
Interest cost 438 454
Return on plan assets (415) (355)
Curtailments and settlements (103) (13)
Pensions, length-of-service awards and other postaployment

benefits 100 260
Employee contributions (19) (21)
Total 81 239

Additional information about defined contribution p lans

Contributions to defined contribution plans for 201lrepresented an estimated €645 million
(2010: €604 million), including €453 million for ogernment-sponsored basic pension schemes
(2010: €420 million), €141 million for governmesponsored supplementary pension schemes, mainly in
France (2010: €137 million), and €51 million for rporate-sponsored supplementary pension plans
(2010: €47 million).
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NOTE 15 - CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES

The pre-tax income of consolidated companies fslisns:

2011 2010
(in EUR millions)
Net income 1,360 1,213
Less:
Share in net income of associates 8 5
Income taxes (656) (577)
Pre-tax income of consolidated companies 2,008 1,78
Income tax expense breaks down as follows:
2011 2010
(in EUR millions)
Current taxes (662) (541)
France (106) (112)
Outside France (556) (430)
Deferred taxes 6 (36)
France (12) (28)
Outside France 18 (8)
Total income tax expense (656) (577)
The effective tax rate breaks down as follows:
(in %) 2011 2010
Tax rate in France 34.4 34.4
Impact of tax rates outside France (5.9 (3.1)
Impact of 2011 Finance Law in France (add-in 5%) 1.7 0.0
Capital gains and losses and asset impairments 3.8 1.9
Provisions for deferred tax assets 0.8 0.9
Effect of changes in future tax rates (1.1 (0.6)
Research tax credit (0.7 (1.0)
Other deferred and miscellaneous taxes (0.3) 0.2)
Effective tax rate 32.7 32.3
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In the balance sheet, changes in net deferredataikty break down as follows:

Net deferred tax

(in EUR millions) liability
At January 1, 2010 245
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 36
Changes in deferred taxes on actuarial gains aséd$aecognized in accordance with (40)
IAS 19 (Note 14)
Translation adjustments (14)
Impact of changes in Group structure and other (18)
At December 31, 2010 209
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) (6)
Changes in deferred taxes on actuarial gains asédaecognized in accordance with (240)
IAS 19 (Note 14)
Translation adjustments (25)
Impact of changes in Group structure and other 6
At December 31, 2011 (56)

The table below shows the principal componentdeftet deferred tax liability:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
(in EUR millions)

Deferred tax assets 949 700
Deferred tax liabilities (893) (909)
Net deferred tax liability 56 (209)
Pensions 948 707
Brands (799) (814)
Depreciation & amortization, accelerated capitilivednces and tax-driven provisions (1,182) (1,122)
Tax loss carryforwards 584 522
Other 505 498
Total 56 (209)

Deferred taxes are offset at the level of eactetdity, i.e., by tax group where applicable (maimlyrance, the
United Kingdom, Spain, Germany, the United Statesthe Netherlands).

Deferred tax assets of €949 million were recognaedecember 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010: €700omjll
including €638 million in the United States. Detatrtax liabilities recognized at December 31, 2@tbunted

to €893 million (December 31, 2010: €909 milliom¢luding €393 million in France and €192 milliom the
United Kingdom. Deferred tax liabilities recognizéd other countries represented considerably smalle
amounts.

Deferred tax assets whose recovery is not conslderebable totaled €190 million at December 31,1201
(December 31, 2010: €154 million).
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In France, thetaxe professionnelldocal business tax has been replaced, from 20§0thé Contribution
Economique TerritorialCET), a two-part tax. In accordance with IAS fi# portion of the tax assessed on
the value added by the businesst{€ation sur la Valeur Ajoutée des Enterprise€VAE) has been included
in income tax for the period, because it is assksserevenues net of expenses, particularly inBhigding
Distribution sector which represents roughly 50%tleé Group’s revenue in France. As a result of this
accounting treatment, a €20 million net deferredli@bility arising from temporary differences beten book
values and tax bases at December 31, 2009 wasnigedgn income tax expense in the 2010 incomerstant.

NOTE 16 — OTHER CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Provisions Provisions Provisions Provisions Provisions Provisions Total Investment- Total
for claims for environ- for restruc- for for  for other provision related
and mental turing costs personne  customer contin-  forother liabilities
litigation risks costs warranties gencies liabilities

(in EUR millions)
At January 1, 2010

Current portion 92 34 133 38 88 128 513 5 518

Non-current portion 1,273 133 107 44 153 328 2,038 131 2,169
Total 1,365 167 240 82 241 456 2,551 136 2,687
Movements during the year

Additions 166 28 136 31 83 77 521 521

Reversals a7) (26) 9) (19) (74) (145) (145)

Utilizations (120) (10) (126) (16) (63) (66) (401) (401)

Changes in Group structure 2 2 9 11

Other (reclassifications and translation adjustsjent 27 6 13 4 15 4 69 13 82
Total movements 73 7 3) 10 16 (57) 46 22 68
At December 31, 2010

Current portion 100 37 117 45 100 113 512 15 527

Non-current portion 1,338 137 120 47 157 286 2,085 143 2,228
Total 1,438 174 237 92 257 399 2,597 158 2,755
Movements during the year

Additions 151 18 87 23 119 88 486 486

Reversals (1) (13) (32) (13) (34) 7 (170) (170)

Utilizations (102) 9) (100) (24) (90) (66) (391) (391)

Changes in Group structure 1 (1) 0 9 9

Other (reclassifications and translation adjustsjent 15 1) (10) (5) 3 23 25 162 187
Total movements 63 5) (54) (29) 2) (33 (50) 171 121
At December 31, 2011

Current portion 117 33 93 36 113 137 529 204 733

Non-current portion 1,384 136 90 37 142 229 2,018 125 2,143
Total 1,501 169 183 73 255 366 2,547 329 2,876

Provisions for claims and litigation

In 2011, provisions for claims and litigation cosér potential costs arising from investigations e t
competition authorities involving the Flat Glasssimess and from asbestos-related litigation. Tipegeisions
are described in further detail in Note 27.
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Provisions for environmental risks

Provisions for environmental risks cover coststietato environmental protection measures, as albite
rehabilitation and clean-up costs.

Provisions for restructuring costs

Provisions for restructuring costs came to €183lionil at December 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010:
€237 million), including net additions of €55 milhi during the year. The provisions primarily comcBenelux
(€40 million), Germany (€28 million), France (€26llan), the United Kingdom (€25 million), Latin Agrica
(€14 million) and the United States (€9 million).

Provisions for personnel costs

These provisions primarily cover indemnities duemtaployees that are unrelated to the Group’s reizgaon
plans.

Provisions for customer warranties

These provisions cover the Group’s commitments utitewarranties granted to customers in the Urittiades
and other markets.

Provisions for other contingencies

At December 31, 2011, provisions for other contitges amounted to €366 million and mainly concerned
France (€118 million), Germany (€91 million), thaitéd States (€56 million), Latin America (€39 naitl),
Italy (€24 million) and Spain (€11 million).

Investment-related liabilities

Changes in investment-related liabilities primardgncern put options granted to minority sharehslde

additional purchase consideration and deferred paysnon acquisitions. In 2011, this item also idek
liabilities corresponding to forward purchasesrefsury stock.
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NOTE 17 — TRADE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCR UED EXPENSES

December 31 December 31

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Trade accounts payable 6,018 5,690
Customer deposits 791 727
Payable to suppliers of non-current assets 374 354
Grants received 99 60
Accrued personnel expenses 1,177 1,149
Accrued taxes other than on income 434 446
Other 687 659
France 119 115
Germany 51 66
United Kingdom 111 96
Other Western European countries 135 130
North America 60 57
Emerging countries and Asia 211 195
Total other payables and accrued expenses 3,562 3,395

Trade and other accounts payable are due mainhlinviine year, with the result that their carryimgoaint
approximates fair value.

NOTE 18 — RISK FACTORS

MARKET RISKS (LIQUIDITY, INTEREST RATE, FOREIGN EXCHANGE, ENERGY AND CREDIT
RISKS)

Liquidity risk on financing

In a crisis environment, the Group could be undbleaise the financing or refinancing needed toecdts
investment plans on the credit market or the chpitarket, or to obtain such financing or refinamgcion
acceptable terms.

There is also no guarantee that the Company'steeditig will remain at the current level.

The Group's overall exposure to liquidity risk oet rdebt is managed by the Treasury and Financing
Department of Compagnie de Saint-Gobain. Excepgpiecial cases, all of the Group companies' long-ter
financing needs and the majority of their shortrtdéinancing needs are met by Compagnie de Sainti@aly

by the national delegations' cash pools.

The main objective of liquidity risk management gesses is to guarantee that the Group’s finan@ogess
will be rolled over and to optimize annual borrogicosts. Long-term debt therefore systematicallyasents a
high percentage of overall debt. At the same tifme maturity schedules of long-term debt are sstish a way
that replacement capital markets issues are spneadime.

Medium-term notes are the main source of long-tiénancing used by the Group, along with bonds. Haeve
it also uses perpetual bonds, participating seearibank borrowings and lease financing.
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Short-term debt is composed mainly of borrowingdarnFrench Commercial PapeBillets de Trésorerig
programs and, from time-to-time, Euro Commerciapdtaand US Commercial Paper programs, but also
includes receivables securitization programs andkbaverdrafts. Short-term financial assets comprise
marketable securities and cash equivalents.

To maintain secure sources of financing, Compadei&aint-Gobain has various confirmed syndicatees|of
credit.

A breakdown of long- and short-term debt is prodidey type and maturity in Note 19. Details of amtsyn
currencies, and acceleration clauses of the Grofiipécing programs and confirmed credit lines al&o
discussed in Note 19.

Saint-Gobain's long-term debt issues have beed BEBB with a stable outlook by Standard & Poorlscsi
July 24, 2009 and Baa2 with a positive outlook byddy's since June 8, 2011.

Liquidity risk on investments

Short-term investments consist of bank depositsranthal fund units. To reduce liquidity or volatlirisk,
whenever possible, the Group invests in money manke/or bond funds.

Interest rate risks

The Group's overall exposure to interest rate deknet debt is managed by the Treasury and Fingncin
Department of Compagnie de Saint-Gobain using #meesfinancing structures and methods as for liguidi
risk. Where subsidiaries use derivatives to hedggrést rate risks, their counterparty is gener@tynpagnie
de Saint-Gobain, the Group's parent company.

The Group's overall exposure to interest rate oiskconsolidated debt is managed primarily withdabgective
of fixing the cost of medium-term debt and optimgiannual borrowing costs. According to Group pglibe
derivative financial instruments used to hedgeeahesks comprise interest rate swaps, options ldimy caps,
floors and swaptions — and forward rate agreements.

Based on a sensitivity analysis of the Group’s| toé debt after hedging, a 50-basis point increadseterest
rates at the balance sheet date would lead ta2anilion increase in income.

Foreign exchange risk

The currency hedging policies described below cta@dnadequate to protect the Group against unéxgpec
sharper than expected fluctuations in exchangs ratilting from economic and financial market ¢boals.
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Foreign exchange risks are managed by hedging cocrahéransactions carried out by Group entities in
currencies other than their functional currenclésmpagnie de Saint-Gobain and its subsidiariesoptens
and forward contracts to hedge exposures arisiog frurrent and future commercial transactions. The
subsidiaries set up options exclusively throughGheup's parent company, Compagnie de Saint-Gohdiich
then takes a reverse position on the market.

Most forward contracts have short maturities, afuad three months. However, forward contracts takdro
hedge firm orders may have terms of up to two years

Wherever possible, foreign exchange risks are hedgth Compagnie de Saint-Gobain upon receipt ef th
orders sent by the subsidiaries, or with the lalgdégations' cash pools. In other cases, hedgesoateacted
with the subsidiaries' banks.

The Group monitors its exposure to foreign exchaigleusing a monthly reporting system which capsuthe
foreign exchange positions taken by subsidiarieDécember 31, 2011, 98% of the Group's foreigrarge
position was hedged.

The net foreign exchange exposure of subsidiariesse functional currency is not one of those priesen
below was as follows at December 31, 2011:

Long Short
(in millions of euro equivalents)
EUR 2 5
usD 5 13
Other currencies 0 2
Total 7 20

Based on a sensitivity analysis at December 311,28110% increase in the exchange rates of the coaiencies
used by subsidiaries would have the following inbjmsicnet income:

Net gain or
(in EUR millions) loss
EUR (0.4)
USD (0.8)

A 10% fall in exchange rates would have a reverggact in the same amounts, assuming that all etrébles
were unchanged.

Energy and raw materials risk

The Group is exposed to changes in the price of materials used in its products and in energy pridée
energy hedging programs may be inadequate to prittedsroup against significant or unforeseen psiwengs
that could result from the prevailing financial aaxbnomic environment.

The Group limits its exposure to energy price fiations by using swaps and options to hedge péts &fel oil,
natural gas and electricity purchases. The swagptions are mainly contracted in the functionairency of
the entities concerned. Hedges of gas and fugbwithases are managed by a steering committee somgpr
members of the Group Finance Department, the GRuiphasing Department (Saint-Gobain Achats - SGW) a
the relevant Delegations.
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Hedges of energy purchases (excluding fixed-pricelmses negotiated directly with suppliers byRbechasing
Department) are generally arranged by the Groupstmy and Financing Department (or with the Delegat
treasury departments) in accordance with instrostieceived from SGA.

The steering committee does not manage hedgeserdianed above because:

= The volumes involved are not material, or

» There are no international price indexes used bgllplayers and transactions are therefore basezitioer
administered prices or strictly national indexes.

In both of these cases, local purchasing units geeaergy risk primarily through fixed-price pursha.

The Group may from time to time enter into consact hedge purchases of other commodities, in decoe
with the principles outlined above for energy pasts.

There can be no guarantee that raw materials tbatc hedged as explained above will not be subjesudden,
considerable or unforeseen fluctuations.

Credit risk

The Group may be exposed to the risk of lossesash and other financial instruments held or manageis
behalf by financial institutions, if any of its auierparties defaults on its obligations. Group @ols to limit its
exposure by dealing solely with leading counteiparand monitoring their credit ratings, in linethwguidelines
approved by the Board of Directors. There is naguige that this policy will be effective in entreliminating
counterparty risk. Any default by a counterpartyldohave a material adverse effect on the Groupsctives,
operating income and financial position.

To limit the Group’s exposure to credit risk, theedsury and Financing Department only deals with
counterparties with a long-term rating of A- or sédrom Standard & Poor's or A3 or above from Mdedwith

a stable outlook in both cases. Concentrationgaditcrisk are closely monitored to ensure thay tr@main at
reasonable levels.

However, credit risks arising from transactionshwiihancial counterparties can escalate rapidlyahdh credit
rating is no guarantee that an institution will e&perience a rapid deterioration of its finanpiasition.

Note 20 provides details of the Group’s interet mnd energy hedges, and the interest ratesdam#in items

of debt. It also provides a breakdown of debt byrency and interest rate (fixed or variable), adl s the
interest rate repricing schedule.
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NOTE 19 — NET DEBT

Long- and short-term debt

Long- and short-term debt consists of the following

December 31, December 31,

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Bond issues and Medium-Term Notes 7,620 7,104
Perpetual bonds and participating securities 203 203
Other long-term debt including finance leases 347 332
Debt recognized at fair value under the fair valpgon 156 157
Fair value of interest rate hedges 0 26

Total long-term debt (excluding current portion) 8,326 7,822

Current portion of long-term debt * 1,656 1,094
Short-term financing programs (US CP, Euro Bilets de trésoreri¢ 76 0
Bank overdrafts and other short-term bank borrowing 627 684
Securitizations 357 327
Fair value of derivatives not qualified as heddgedett 2 3

Short-term debt and bank overdrafts 1,062 1,014

TOTAL GROSS DEBT 11,044 9,930
Cash and cash equivalents (2,949) (2,762)

TOTAL NET DEBT, INCLUDING ACCRUED INTEREST 8,095 7,168

* Including the fair value of interest rate heddes€10 million maturing within one year.

The fair value of gross long-term debt (includihg turrent portion) managed by Compagnie de Saihia
amounted to €9.7 billion at December 31, 2011 af@arrying amount of €9.3 billion. The fair valuebmnds

corresponds to the market price on the last dahefyear. For other borrowings, fair value is cdestd as

being equal to the amount repayable.
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Long-term debt repayment schedule

Long-term debt at December 31, 2011 can be analgzéollows by maturity:

Within1l 1to5years BeyondEt Total
(in EUR millions) Currency year years
Bond issues and Medium-Term Notes EUR 1,250 4,058 2,846 8,154
GBP 0 358 358 716
Perpetual bonds and participating securities EUR 0 0 203 203
Other long-term debt including finance leases All currencies 187 215 132 534
Debt recognized at fair value under the fair value option EUR 0 156 0 156
Fair value of interest rate hedges EUR 10 0 0 10
TOTAL, EXCLUDING ACCRUED INTEREST 1,447 4,787 3,539 9,773

At December 31, 2011, future interest payments sy long-term debt (including the current portion)
managed by Compagnie de Saint-Gobain were dudlaw$o

Withinl 1to5years BeyondE& Total
(in EUR millions) year years
Future interest payments on gross long-term debt 433 1,119 406 1,958

Interest on perpetual bonds and participating $&esiis calculated through to 2024.

Bond issues
On May 31, 2011, Compagnie de Saint-Gobain redeen®&@7 million bond issue that had reached maturit

On September 30, 2011, Compagnie de Saint-Gobairched a €1,750 million bond issue comprising two
tranches:

* A 4-year 3.5% tranche totaling €1,000 million, and
* An 8-year 4.5% tranche for €750 million.

The issue, which will be used mainly to refinancgsting debt, has extended the average maturityhef
Group’s debt while also optimizing average borraywosts.

On January 18, 2012, Compagnie de Saint-Gobaieased its €750 million 8-year bond issue by cagyiat
a €50 million tap issue.

On January 19, 2012, Compagnie de Saint-Gobaimdurncreased its €750 million 8-year bond issue by
carrying out a €150 million tap issue.
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Perpetual bonds

In 1985, Compagnie de Saint-Gobain issued €125omillorth of perpetual bonds — 25,000 bonds withca
value of €5,000 — paying interest at a variable matlexed to Euribor. These securities are noteradble and
the interest paid on them is reported under “Boimgveosts”.

Up to December 31, 2011, 18,496 perpetual bondsbead bought back and canceled and 6,504 perpetual
bonds were outstanding, representing a total fateevof €33 million.

Participating securities

In the 1980s, Compagnie de Saint-Gobain issued81298 non-voting participating securities indexedhe
average bond rate (TMO) and 194,633 non-votinggpating securities indexed to Euribor (minimunhese
securities are not redeemable and the interestgueidem is reported under “Borrowing costs”.

Some of these securities have been bought backhenmtarket. At December 31, 2011, there were
606,883 TMO-indexed securities and 77,516 Euribdeked securities outstanding, representing areggtg
face value of €170 million.

Interest on the 606,883 TMO-indexed securities ists1®f a fixed portion and a variable portion lthea the
Group's earnings, subject to a cap of 1.25 timesTiMO. Interest on the 77,516 Euribor-indexed Sé&esr
comprises (i) a fixed portion of 7.5% per year aggtlle to 60% of the security, and (i) a variaplertion
applicable to the remaining 40% of the securityiclwhs linked to consolidated net income of thevjyes year,
subject to the cap specified in the issue agreement

Financing programs

The Group has a number of medium and long-terrmimg programs (Medium Term Notes) and short-term
financing programs (Commercial Paper &illets de Trésorerip

At December 31, 2011, issuance under these prograsss follows:

Programs Currency Maturities Authorized Outstanding issuds  Outstanding isspies
program at Dec. 31, 2011 at Dec. 31, 2010
(in millions of currency at Dec. 31, 2011
units)

Medium Term Notes EUR 1 to 30 years 12,000 7,951 208,

US Commercial Paper UsD Up to 12 monthg 1,000* 0 0

Euro Commercial Paper uUsD Up to 12 monthg 1,000* 0 0

Billets de Trésorerie EUR Up to 12 months 3,000 76 0

* Equivalent to €773 million based on the excharage at December 31, 2011.

In accordance with market practic@llets de TrésorerieEuro Commercial Paper and US Commercial Paper
are generally issued with maturities of one torsonths. They are treated as variable-rate debfusecthey are
rolled over at frequent intervals.
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Syndicated lines of credit

Compagnie de Saint-Gobain has various confirmedlisgited lines of credit that are intended to previd
secure source of financing for the Group (includisgadditional backing for its US Commercial Pajeno-
Commercial Paper arigillets de Trésorerigrograms). They include:
» A €2.5 billion syndicated line of credit obtainedJune 2009. Renegotiated in 2010, the facility teen
extended by one year until June 2013 and reducédi tillion.
The facility agreement includes a covenant stijngatthat the Group’s net debt/operating income
excluding depreciation and amortization of propepgiant and equipment and intangible assets rato,
measured annually at December 31, must at all tiegesent less than 3.75.
This ratio was complied with at December 31, 2011.

* A €3 billion syndicated line of credit expiring december 2015, that was obtained in December 2010.
does not include any covenant.

Neither of these confirmed lines of credit was dralewn at December 31, 2011.

Bank overdrafts and other short-term bank borrowings

This item includes bank overdrafts, local shortrdsank borrowings taken out by subsidiaries, arousd
interest on short-term debt.

Receivables securitization programs

The Group has set up two securitization programmsuthh its US subsidiary, Saint-Gobain Receivables
Corporation, and its UK subsidiary, Jewson Ltd.tNei of the programs transfers the credit riskh®ftnancial
institution.

The US program amounted to €177 million at Decendtie2011 (December 31, 2010: €153 million).

The difference between the face value of the setetiwvables and the sale proceeds is treated amacial
expense, and amounted to €2.5 million in 2011 (2640 million).

The UK program amounted to €180 million at DecenBier2011 (December 31, 2010: €174 million) and the
financial expense came to €1.6 million in 2011 @GA1.5 million).

Collateral

At December 31, 2011, €46 million of Group debt wasured by various non-current assets (real eatate
securities).
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NOTE 20 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives

The following table presents a breakdown of thegipial derivatives used by the Group:

Fair value a Nominal value broken down by maturity
Fair value at December 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010 at December 31, 2011
Derivatives  Derivatives Total Within 1year 1to5years Beyond £ Total
recordedi recorded il years
(in EUR millions) assets liabilities

Fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 0 0 0 19 0 0 0
Fair value hedges - total 0 0 0 19 0 0 0 0
Cash flow hedges
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1 (5) (4) 2 184 2 0 186
Currency options 0
Currency swaps 0
Interest rate swaps 0 (10) (10) (45) 1250 0 0 1250
Energy and commodity swaps 3 (11) 8) 1 75 0 0 75
Cash flow hedges - total 4 (26) (22) (42 1509 2 0 1511
Derivatives not qualifying for
hedge accounting
Interest rate swaps 1 0 1 2 0 155 0 155
Currency swaps 5 (9) (4) (6) 1694 0 0 1694
Energy and commodity swaps 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2 (1) 1 0 115 5 0 120
Derivatives not qualifying for
hedge accounting - total 8 (10) (2) (4) 1809 160 0 1969
TOTAL 12 (36) (24) (27) 3318 162 0 3480
o/w derivatives used to hed
net debt 6 (18) (12) (29) 0

= Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to converiop@d fixed (variable) rate bank debt and bondtdelvariable

(fixed) rates.

= Currency swaps

The Group uses currency swaps for day-to-day castagement purposes and, in some cases, to peemiséhof

euro-denominated funds to finance foreign curressets.

= Forward foreign exchange contracts and currencyap

Forward foreign exchange contracts and currencyormptare used to hedge foreign currency transaction

particularly commercial transactions (purchasessates) and investments.

= Energy and commodity swaps

Energy and commodity swaps are used to hedgegkefrichanges in the price of certain purchased imséhe
subsidiaries’ operating activities, particularlyeagy (fuel oil, natural gas and electricity) pursbs
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Impact on equity of financial instruments qualifying for hedge accounting

At December 31, 2011, the cash flow hedging researded in equity in accordance with IFRS had hitde
balance of €22 million, mainly breaking down addols:

« €10 million corresponding to the remeasuremenaiatvBlue of interest rate swaps designated asftash
hedges that are used to fix the interest rate od$o

« €12 million corresponding to the remeasuremengiatvilue of other cash flow hedges to be recleskib
income when the hedged items affect income.

The ineffective portion of gains and losses on dlsh hedges is not material.

Impact on income of financial instruments not qualfying for hedge accounting

Fair value of derivatives classified as financegdets and liabilities at fair value through profiloss represented a
€2 million loss in 2011 (2010: €4 million loss).

Embedded derivatives

Saint-Gobain regularly analyzes its contracts ideorto separately identify financial instrumentassified as
embedded derivatives under IFRS. At December 311,280 embedded derivatives deemed to be matérial a
Group level were identified.

Group debt structure

The weighted average interest rate on total detkeirRS, after hedging (using currency swaps ategtast rate
swaps) was 4.8% at December 31, 2011 (Decemb&03Q; 4.8%).

The average internal rates of return for the mammonents of long-term debt before hedging wer®lksvs
in 2011 and 2010:

Internal rate of return on long-term debt December December
(in %) 31, 2011 31, 2010

Bonds and Medium Term Notes 5J19 5.35
Perpetual bonds and participating securities .85 3.97
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The table below presents the breakdown by currendyby interest rate (fixed or variable) of the @r's gross
debt at December 31, 2011, after giving effechterest rate swaps and currency swaps.

Gross debt denominated in foreign currencies After hedging
Variable Fixed Total
(in EUR millions) rate rate
EUR 547 8,256 8,803
GBP (63) 716 653
UsSD 117 12 129
NOK, SEK 470 2 472
Other currencies 573 139 712
TOTAL 1,644 9,125 10,769
15% 85% 100%
Fair value of related derivatives 12
Accrued interest 263
TOTAL GROSS DEBT 11,044

Interest rate repricing schedule for debt

The table below shows the interest rate reprioihgdule at December 31, 2011 for gross debt agthgihg:

Within1l 1to5years Beyond: Total
(in EUR millions) year years
Gross debt 3,293 4,530 3,221 11,044
Impact of interest rate swaps 0 0 0 0

GROSS DEBT AFTER HEDGING 3,293 4,530 3,221 11,044
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NOTE 21 - FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are classifiebiews in accordance with IFRS 7:

Notes December 31 December 31
(in EUR millions) 2011 2010

Loans and receivables

Trade and other accounts receivable 9) 6,749 6,286

Loans and deposits (7) 266 210
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available for sale and other securities (a) 7) 29 25
Financial assets at fair value through profit or Iss

Derivatives recorded in assets (b) (19)(20) 6 25

Cash and cash equivalents (c) (19) 2,949 2,762
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Trade and other accounts payable (17) (9,580) (9,085)

Long and short-term debt (19) (10,868) (9,724)
Financial liabilities at fair value

Long and short-term debt (d) (19) (164) (177)

Derivatives recorded in liabiliies (b) (19)(20) (18) (54)

(a) Available-for-sale financial assets are generalBasured at historical cost except for securitiaded in
an active market which are measured at the yearremidet price, corresponding to level 1 in the failue
hierarchy under IFRS 7.

(b) Derivatives consist mainly of interest rate swapd forward foreign exchange contracts. The faiugalf
these instruments is measured using the discowatgd flows method, corresponding to level 2 inftie
value hierarchy under IFRS 7.

(c) Marketable securities included in cash and caslvalgnts consist of mutual fund units measuredairt
net asset value, corresponding to level 1 in tirevédue hierarchy under IFRS 7.

(d) Long- and short-term debt is measured at fair vakirg the discounted cash flows method, correspgnd
to level 2 in the fair value hierarchy under IFRS 7
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NOTE 22 — BUSINESS INCOME BY EXPENSE TYPE

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010

Net sales 42,116 40,119

Personnel costs

Salaries and payroll taxes (7,955) (7,825)

Share-based paymetits (39) (41)

Pensiong’ (76) (165)
Depreciation and amortization (1,511) (1,535)
Other® (29,094) (27,436)
Operating income 3,441 3,117
Other business inconf® 69 87
Negative goodwill recognized in income 0 0
Other business income 69 87
Restructuring cost§ (167) (242)
Provisions and expenses relating to claims arghtitn® (149) (161)
Impairment of assets and other business expéghses (469) (235)
Other (79) (42)
Other business expense (864) (680)
Business income 2,646 2,524

(a) Details of share-based payments are provided ied\bi, 12 and 13.

() Changes in pension costs are presented in NotBrb4isions for pensions and other employee beriefits

(c) This items corresponds to Building Distribution ®eccost of sales, supplier discounts and selling
expenses, and to transport costs, raw materials,caisd other production costs for the other Sector
This item also includes net foreign exchange gams losses, representing a net loss of €1 million i
2011 (2010: not material). In 2011, research angtld@ment costs recorded under operating expenses
amounted to €417 million (2010: €402 million).

(d) This item includes capital gains on disposals opprty, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

(e) Restructuring costs in 2011 mainly consisted of legge termination benefits in an amount of
€95 million (2010: €155 million).

® In the periods presented, provisions and experedasng to claims and litigation corresponded foe t
most part to asbestos-related litigation and tlewipion for the competition litigation discussedNiotes
16 and 27.

(9) Impairment losses on assets in 2011 included impait losses of €309 million on goodwill (2010:
€87 million) and €72 million on property, plant aequipment and intangible assets (2010: €133 mi)llio
and €2 million on financial assets and current tas&10: €12 million). The caption “Other” inclugle
capital losses on disposals of assets for €68amilind acquisition costs incurred in connectiorhwit
business combinations for €18 million.
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NOTE 23 — NET FINANCIAL EXPENSE

Breakdown of other financial income and expense

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Interest cost - pension and other post-employmemtit

obligations (445) (464)
Return on plan assets 415 355

Interest cost - pension and other post-employment

benefit obligations - net (30) (109)
Other financial expense (111) (123)
Other financial income 19 12

Other financial income and expense (122) (220)

Recognition of financial instruments
Net financial expense amounted to €638 million @12 (2010: €739 million). Of this amount, €472.7lion
(2010: €503.1 million) relates to instruments eatrat amortized cost by Compagnie de Saint-GobainSaint-

Gobain Nederland. Instruments measured at fairevlly these two entities resulted in a positive ichpe
€3.4 million (2010: €0.4 million positive impact).

NOTE 24 — EBITDA — RECURRING NET INCOME — CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS

EBITDA amounted to €4,952 million in 2011 (2010;&R million), calculated as follows:

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010

Operating income 3,441 3,117
Depreciation and amortizati 1,511 1,53t
EBITDA 4,952 4,652

Recurring net income totaled €1,736 million in 2Q2D10: €1,335 million). Based on the weighted ager
number of shares outstanding at December 31 (5282% shares in 2011, 517,954,691 shares in 2(8d);ring
earnings per share amounted to €3.30 in 2011 ah8 €22010.
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The difference between net income and recurring imedme (attributable to equity holders of the pgre
corresponds to the following items:

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Net income attributable to equity holders of the peent 1,284 1,129
Less:
Gains on disposals of assets 1 87
Impairment of assets (401) (235)
Provision for competition litigation and other naeurring provision charges (123) (75)
Impact of minority interests Q) 0
Tax impact 72 17
Recurring net income attributable to equity holdersof the parent 1,736 1,335

Cash flow from operations for 2011 amounted to ZB,#hillion (2010: €3,004 million). Excluding tax aapital
gains and losses, cash flow from operations cargg,849 million in 2011 (2010: €2,987 million). Heeamounts
are calculated as follows:

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010

Net income attributable to equity holders of the peent 1,284 1,12¢
Minority interests in net income 76 84
Share in net income of associates, net of dividezckived )] (5)
Depreciation, amortization and impairment of assets 1,892 1,755
Gains and losses on disposals of assets @ 87)
Non-recurring charges to provisions 123 75
Unrealized gains and losses arising from changisrimalue and
share-based payments 48 53

Cash flow from operations 3,421 3,004

Tax on capital gains and losses and non-recurtiagges
to provisions (72) a7)

Cash flow from operations before tax on capital gais and losses ar
non-recurring charges to provisions 3,349 2,987
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NOTE 25 — EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per share is showrvbelo

Net income Number of Earnings per

attributable to shares share

equity holders of (in EUR)

(in EUR millions) the parent

2011

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 1,284 526,274,931 2.44

Weighted average number of shares assuming fuliaiil 1,284 530,333,380 2.42
2010

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 1,129 517,954,691 2.18

Weighted average number of shares assuming fulialil 1,129 519,887,155 2.17

The weighted average number of shares outstanslicgigulated by deducting treasury stock (9,358%@res at
December 31, 2011) from the average number of sloatstanding during the year.

The weighted average number of shares assumindilfutibn is calculated based on the weighted ayesraimber
of shares outstanding, assuming conversion ofilativé instruments. The Group’s dilutive instrunteonsist of

stock options and performance share grants comdsmp to a weighted average of 1,760,538 shares and
2,297,911 shares respectively in 2011.

NOTE 26 — COMMITMENTS

Commitments related to shares in subsidiaries andsgociates

Puts granted to minority shareholders are carrigtié balance sheet under investment-relateditiebil They are
reviewed on a periodic basis and any subsequengekan their fair value are recognized by adjgstiquity.

Financing-related commitments

The Group's commitments related to debt and fimhitgtruments are discussed in Notes 19 and 20ecévely.

Commitments related to operating activities
= Obligations under finance leases

Non-current assets acquired under finance leageseabgnized as an asset and a liability in thesalaated
balance sheet.
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At December 31, 2011, €36 million of future minimiease payments due under finance leases condantkdnd
buildings. Total assets under finance leases rémeginn consolidated assets amounted to €119 millib
December 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010: €130 million)

December 31, December 31,

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Future minimum lease payments
Due within 1 year 25 42
Due in 1 to 5years 46 65
Due beyond 5 years 10 13
Total 81 120
Less finance charge (9) (12)
Present value of future minimum lease payments 72 108

= Obligations under operating leases

The Group leases equipment, vehicles and officapfaaturing and warehouse space under various acetable
operating leases. Lease terms generally range fream9 years. The commitment corresponding to toitalre

minimum payments over the lease term is discounféte leases contain rollover options for varyimgiqds of

time and some include clauses covering the payofaetl estate taxes and insurance. In most casgggement
expects that these leases will be rolled overgaced by other leases in the normal course ohbssi

Rental expense was €813 million in 2011, includiegtal expense of €533 million for land and buiigirend
revenue from subleases of €20 million. The netatentpense is €793 million.

Future minimum payments due under non-cancelaldeatipg leases are as follows:

Total 2011 Payments due Total 2010
Within 1 year Inlto5 Beyond £
(in EUR millions) years years
Operating leases
Rental expense 3,028 776 1,541 711 2,697
Subletting revenue (59) (17) (29) (13) (46)
Total 2,969 759 1,512 698 2,651
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= Non-cancelable purchase commitments

Non-cancelable purchase commitments include comenitsnto purchase raw materials and services amd fir
orders for property, plant and equipment.

Total 2011 Payments due Total 2010
Within 1 year Inlto5 Beyond £
(in EUR millions) years years
Non-cancelable purchase commitments
Non-current assets 230 213 16 1 184
Raw materials 715 272 381 62 624
Services 115 46 67 2 119
Other 543 382 151 10 127
Total 1,603 913 615 75 1,054

The €549 million increase in non-cancelable puref@smmitments in 2011 was mainly due to the agreéne
signed for the acquisition of the ductile iron pigivision of the Electrotherm’s company in Indiadaaof
Brossette, a specializing company in the distrdoudf plumbing, heating and sanitary products iange. It
also reflected the renewal of certain raw matepalthase contracts.

= Guarantee commitments

In some cases, the Group grants seller's warraatidge buyers of divested businesses. A provisiset aside
whenever a risk is identified and the related castbe estimated reliably.

The Group also receives guarantees, amounting @ €iillion at December 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010:
€95 million).

=  Commercial commitments

Total 2011 Payments due Total 2010
Within 1 year Inlto5 Beyond £
(in EUR millions) years years
Commercial commitments
Security for borrowings 35 8 14 13 37
Written put options 0 0
Other commitments given 216 89 49 78 237
Total 251 97 63 91 274

At December 31, 2011, pledged assets amountedOtb #dlion (December 31, 2010: €70 million) and nigi
concerned fixed assets in Brazil and India.

Guarantees given to the Group in respect of relsleisaamounted to €109 million at December 31, Z0Etember
31, 2010: €100 million).

= Other commitments
Greenhouse gas emissions allowances granted topCGeompanies under the 2008-2012 plan represent
approximately 6.9 million metric tons of G@missions per year. The 2011 and 2010 allowaneeshmve the

greenhouse gas emissions for those years and,queargly, no provision has been recorded in thipeessin
the Group accounts.
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NOTE 27 — LITIGATION
Asbestos-related litigation in France

In France, further individual lawsuits were filed 2011 by former employees (or persons claimingutgh
them) of Everite and Saint-Gobain PAM (“the emplsyEe— which in the past had carried out fiber-ceme
operations — for asbestos-related occupationahsiése with the aim of obtaining supplementary coreggon
over and above the amounts paid by the French ISBerurity authorities in this respect. A total @2 such
lawsuits have been issued against the two compaimies 1997.

At December 31, 2011, 666 of these 742 lawsuitshiegh completed in terms of both liability and quam In
all of these cases, the employers were held liabléne grounds of “inexcusable fault”.

Everite and Saint-Gobain PAM were held liable ty paotal amount of less than €1.3 million in comgeion
in settlement of these lawsuits.

Concerning the 76 lawsuits outstanding against ileve@nd Saint-Gobain PAM at December 31, 2011, the
merits of 11 have been decided but the compensati@nds have not yet been made, pending issue ditate
reports or Appeal Court rulings. A further 34 oésle 76 lawsuits have been completed in terms of lddility

and quantum, but liability for the payment of comgation has not yet been assigned.

Out of the 31 remaining lawsuits, at December 81,12he procedures relating to the merits of 2&sagere at
different stages, with 6 in the process of beingestigated by the French Social Security autharited
21 pending before the Social Security courts. Tina four suits have been withdrawn by the plafatifho can
ask for them to be re-activated at any time withimo-year period.

In addition, as of December 31, 2011, 164 suitetas inexcusable fault had been filed by currerfooner
employees of 12 other French companies in the Gfexduding Saint-Gobain Desjonquéres and Sainta@ob
Vetrotex, which have been sold), in particular iwireg circumstances where equipment containing stslse
had been used to protect against heat from furnaces

At that date, 105 lawsuits had been completed. 8noB these cases, the employer was held liable for
inexcusable fault.

For the 59 suits outstanding at December 31, 2@iduments were being prepared by the French Social
Security authorities in 5 cases, 39 were beingstigated — including 33 pending before the Socedusity
courts, 4 before the Courts of Appeal and 2 befloeeCourt of Cassation — and 8 had been complatéstins

of liability but not in terms of quantum, of whiéhpending before the Courts of Appeal and 3 betfveeSocial
Security Court. The final 7 suits have been witldrdy the plaintiffs who can ask for them to beaotivated

at any time within a two-year period.

Asbestos-related litigation in the United States

In the United States, several companies that orareufactured products containing asbestos suchbestas-
cement pipes, roofing products, specialized ingradr gaskets, are facing legal action from pessather than
their employees or former employees. These clabongdmpensatory — and in many cases punitive — dasna
are based on alleged exposure to the productsualthin many instances the claimants cannot demaiasiny
specific exposure to one or more products, or gregcific illness or physical disability. The vast joréty of
these claims are made simultaneously against mtmgy aon-Group entities which have been manufacture
distributors, installers or users of products ciortg asbestos.
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¢ Developments in 2011

About 4,000 new claims were filed against Certaedlen 2011, compared to about 5,000 in 2010, 4jA00
2009, 5,000 in 2008, and 6,000 in 2007. Over tlst fiwe years the number of new claims has remained
relatively stable.

Almost all of the claims against CertainTeed atdexkout of court. Approximately 8,000 of the pamgiclaims
were resolved in 2011, compared to 13,000 in 281@Y0 in 2009, in 2008 and in 2007. Taking intocant
the 56,000 outstanding claims at the end of 20XDtha new claims having arisen during the yeamwel$ as
claims settled, some 52,000 claims were outstangirigdecember 31, 2011. A large number of theseipgn
claims were filed more than five years ago by iidlials without any significant asbestos-relateddmpent,
and it is likely that many of these claims ultimgteill be dismissed.

» Impact on the accounts

The Group recorded a €90 million charge in 201dawer future developments in relation to claimss@mount

is lower than the €97 million recorded in 2010,H@gthan the €75 million recorded in 2009 and 2@B&l, equal
the €90 million recorded in 2007. At December 3012 the Group reserve for asbestos-related clagamst
CertainTeed in the United States amount to €389iomil($504 million), compared with €375 million,
($501 million) at December 31, 2010, €347 milli®500 million) at December 31, 2009, €361 million
($502 million) at December 31, 2008, and €321iaml{$473 million) at December 31, 2007.

e Cash flow impact

Compensation paid in respect of these claims ag@ieidainTeed, including claims settled prior td 2®ut only
paid out in 2011, and those fully resolved and paigl011, and compensation paid (net of insuraimcPll by
other Group businesses in connection with asbestated litigation, amounted to €59 million ($82llian),

compared to €78 million ($103 million) in 2010, €6#llion ($77 million) in 2009, €48 million ($71 rifibn) in

2008, and €53 million ($73 million) in 2007.

*kk

In Brazil, former Group employees suffering frombestos-related occupational illness are offeretieeit
exclusively financial compensation or lifetime meadiassistance combined with financial compensatiory a
small number of asbestos-related lawsuits brouglibimer employees (or persons claiming throughniheere
outstanding at December 31, 2011, and they do wnoemtly represent a material risk for the companie
concerned.

*kk

Ruling by the European Commission following the inestigation into the automotive glass industries

In the November 12, 2008 decision concerning itgestigation into automotive glass manufacturerg th
European Commission held that Saint-Gobain Glassder, Saint-Gobain Sekurit France and Saint-Gobain
Sekurit Deutschland Gmbh had violated Article 81tleé Treaty of Rome and fined them €896 million.
Compagnie de Saint-Gobain was held jointly and isdlydiable for the payment of this amount.

The companies concerned believe the fine is excessid disproportionate, and have appealed thesidaci
before the General Court of the European Union.

The European Commission has granted them a stagyofient until the appeal has been heard, in exehfama

bond covering the €896 million fine and the relatgérest, calculated at the rate of 5.25% from di®, 2009.
The necessary steps were taken to set up thiswitinid the required timeframe.
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The provision set aside to cover the fine, the iiaterest, the cost of the above bond and theeelgal costs
amounted to €1,066 million at December 31, 2011.

The appeal against the November 12, 2008 decisiocuirently pending before the General Court of the
European Union in Luxembourg.
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NOTE 28 — RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions with associates

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Assets
Financial receivables 1 1
Inventories 0 0
Short-term receivables 10 9
Cash and cash equivalents 0 0
Provisions for impairment in value 0 0
Liabilities
Short-term debt 3 3
Cash advances 0 1
Expenses
Purchases 11 8
Income
Sales 32 34

Revenue from transactions with proportionately conelidated companies

Transactions with proportionately consolidated canigs are treated as transactions with externaépand the
Group's share of revenue arising from such traiosects not eliminated on consolidation. In 20tkse revenues
amounted to €16 million (2010: €21 million).

Transactions with key shareholders

Some Group subsidiaries, particularly in the BuaidpDistribution Sector, carry out transactions vgitifbsidiaries of
the Wendel group. All of these transactions araroarm'’s length basis.

NOTE 29 — JOINT VENTURES

The amounts recorded in the balance sheet and enaatement corresponding to the Group's intere#fSi
proportionately consolidated companies are asvistio

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Assets

Non-current assets 380 277

Current assets 173 164
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities 51 22

Current liabilities 107 88
Expenses

Operating expenses 273 247
Income

Sales 320 310

69



Saint-Gobain Group Consolidated Financial Statesnent

NOTE 30 - MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

Direct and indirect compensation and benefits paichembers of the Board of Directors and the Geosghior
management were as follows in 2011:

(in EUR millions) 2011 2010
Attendance fees 0,8 0,8

Direct and indirect compensation (gross):

Fixed portion 7,9 7,7
Variable portion 4,7 3,2
Estimated compensation cost - pensions and othglogee benefits (IAS 19) 2,0 1,6
Expense relating to stock options* 1,4 7,3
Termination benefits 1,3 0,0
Total 18,1 20,6

* Including the impact of €4,6 millions of prior &s IFRS expense being forfeited in 2011 due tkstoption plans performance targets not being met

Employers' social security contributions relatinghe above compensation represented an estima2dlion.
Pension obligations for the Group's directors angarate officers totaled €46.7 million.

NOTE 31 - EMPLOYEES

(Average number of employees) 2011 2010
Fully consolidated companies
Managers 25,452 25,077
Administrative employees 76,904 78,699
Other employees 85,999 87,875
Total 188,355 191,651

Proportionately consolidated companies (*)

Managers 119 65

Administrative employees 657 449

Other employees 910 757
Sub-total 1,686 1,271
Total 190,041 192,922

* Proportion of headcount allocated to the Group.

At December 31, 2011, the total number of Group leyges — including in proportionately consolidated
companies —was 192,933 (December 31, 2010: 187,891
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NOTE 32 — SEGMENT INFORMATION
Segment information by Sector and Division
Segment information is presented as follows:

* Innovative Materials (IM) Sector

> Flat Glass
> High-Performance Materials (HPM)
» Construction Products (CP) Sector
> Interior Solutions: Insulation and Gypsum
> Exterior Solutions: Industrial Mortars, Pipe anddfior Fittings

Building Distribution Sector
« Packaging Sector

Management uses several different internal indisaim measure operational performance and to nedairce
allocation decisions. These indicators are baseti@data used to prepare the consolidated finksteisements
and meet financial reporting requirements. Intragr@‘internal”) sales are generally carried outtbe same
terms as sales to external customers and are ali@dirin consolidation. The accounting policies usetlthe
same as those applied for consolidated financadrtang purposes, as described in Note 1.

2011 INNOVATIVE MATERIALS CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS Bg:;?':::f; e Aelle | Other* | Total
BUTION
High Intra- ] ) Intra-
Flat perfomance Segmem Total Inter.|or Exterlor Segmem Total
Glass . Elimi- Solutions Solutions  Elimi-
(in EUR millions) Materials \ions nations
External sales 5,419 4,047 9,4p6 4,933 5,595 10,528 18487 3,628 7| 42,114
Internal sales 41 116 (27) 130 578 372 (52) 98 5 (1,033) 0
Net sales 5,460 4,163 (27) 9,596 5,511 5,967 (52) 11,426 18,492 3,6281,02¢) 42,114
Operating income/(los 478 652 1,13( 450 636 1,086 768 418 9 3,441
Business income/(loss) 340 588 924 211 541 752 598 487 (69) 2,846
Share in net income/(loss) of associateg 1 1 6 6 1 8
Depreciation and amortizati 315 160 474 319 185 504 273 237 p2 1,911
Impairment of assets 35 29 64 214 17 231 85 B 393
Capital expenditure 684 198 882 332 227 559 219 268 26 1,954
Cash flow from operations 1,102 888 566 512 353 3,421
EBITDA 793 812 1,604 769 821 1,590 1,041 685 31 4,p52
Goodwill, net 1,551 5,828 3,40 254 11,041
Non-amortizable brands 0 847 1,931 2,77
Total segment assets and liabilities ** 7,786 12,637 8,311 2,255 196  31,1B5

*“Other” corresponds to a) the elimination of agroup transactions for internal sales and b) hgldompany transactions for the other captions.
** Segment assets and liabilities include net priyp@lant and equipment, working capital, goodaiild net other intangible assets, after deductfeyed
taxes on brands and land.
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BUILDING
2010 INNOVATIVE MATERIALS CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS DISTRI- PACKAGING Other * Total
BUTION
High Intra- ) ) Intra-
Flat Performance Segrqent Total Inter-|0r Exterlor Segrqent Total
X . Glass Materials Elimi- Solutions Solutions  Elimi-
(in EUR millions) nations nations
External sales 5,179 3,983 9,1p2 4,662 5,416 10,078 17,323 3,553 3] 40,119
Internal sales 39 105 (23) 1421 533 365 (36) 62 3 (986) 0
Net sales 5,218 4,088 (23) 9288 5195 5781 (36) 10,940 17,826 3,553 983)( 40,119
Operating income/(los 439 585 1,024 379 685 1,064 578 434 17 3,17
Business income/(loss) 289 594 883 305 623 928 403 404 (94) 2,924
Share in net income/(loss) of associates 1 1 2 5 3) 2 [« 2 E
Depreciation and amortizati 307 175 482 332 188 520 2713 235 p5 1,435
Impairment of assets 39 42 81 22 22 44 108 B L 232
Capital expenditure 413 149 562 195 228 428 188 262 18 1,453
Cash flow from operations 958 834 447 488 277 3,004
EBITDA 746 760 1,506 711 873 1,584 851 669 42 4,652
Goodwill, net 1,459 5,920 3,402 249 D 11,030
Non-amortizable brands 0 835 1,912 Q Q 2,747
Total segment assets and liabilities ** 7,093 12,368 8,17 2,171 168 29,979
* “Other” corresponds to a) the elimination of agroup transactions for internal sales and b) hgldompany transactions for the other captions.
** Segment assets and liabilities include net prgp@lant and equipment, working capital, goodwaiid net other intangible assets, after deductifiered
taxes on brands and land.
Information by geographic area
Other Western Emerging
France European North America countries and Internal sales TOTAL
) . countries Asia
(in EUR millions)
2011
Net sales 11,802 18,049 5,505 8,643 (1,883) 42,116
Total segment assets 7,027 12,726 4,713 6,719 31,185
Capital expenditure 327 548 295 784 1,954
Other Western Emerging
France European North America countries and Internal sales TOTAL
) . countries Asia
(in EUR millions)
2010
Net sales 11,388 17,063 5,516 7,983 (1,831) 40,119
Total segment assets 6,886 12,373 4,616 6,104 29,979
Capital expenditure 291 428 202 532 1,453
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NOTE 33 — PRINCIPAL FULLY CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES

The table below shows the Group’s principal comtstéd companies, typically those with annual safesver

€100 million.

INNOVATIVE MATERIALS SECTOR

FLAT GLASS
Saint-Gobain Glass France
Saint-Gobain Sekurit France
Saint-Gobain Glass Logistics

Saint-Gobain Sekurit Deutschland GmbH & CO Kg
Saint-Gobain Glass Deutschland GmbH

SG Deutsche Glas GmbH
Saint-Gobain Glass Benelux
Saint-Gobain Sekurit Benelux SA
Saint-Gobain Autover Distribution SA
Koninklijke Saint-Gobain Glass
Saint-Gobain Glass Polska Sp Zoo

Saint-Gobain Sekurit Hanglas Polska Sp Zoo

Cebrace Cristal Plano Ltda
Saint-Gobain Do Brazil Ltda
Saint-Gobain Cristaleria SA
Solaglas Ltd

Saint-Gobain Glass UK Limited
Saint-Gobain Glass ltalia
Saint-Gobain Sekurit Italia
Hankuk Glass Industries
Hankuk Sekurit Limited
Saint-Gobain Glass India
Saint-Gobain Glass Mexico

HIGH PERFORMANCE MATERIALS
Saint-Gobain Abrasifs

Société Européenne des Produits Réfractaires

Saint-Gobain Abrasives Gmbh
Saint-Gobain Abrasives, Inc.
Saint-Gobain Ceramics & Plastics, Inc.

Saint-Gobain Performance Plastics Corp.

SG Abrasives Canada, Inc.
Saint-Gobain Abrasivi

SEPR ltalia

Saint-Gobain Abrasivos Brasil Ltda
Saint-Gobain Abrasives BV
Saint-Gobain Abrasives Ltd
Saint-Gobain Adfors CZ S.R.O.

France
France
France
Gennan
Germany
Germany
Belgium
Belgium
Belgium
Netherlands
Poland
Poland
Brazil
Brazil
Spain
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Italy
Italy
South Korea
South Korea
India
Mexico

France
France
Germany
United States
United States
United State
Canada
Italy
Italy
Brazil
Netherlands
United Kingdom
Czech Republic

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.99%
99.99%
99.99%
99.97%
99.99%
99.99%
100.00%
99.99%
619%.
50.00%
100.00%
99.83%
99.99%
99.99%
100.00%
100.00%
80.47%
90.13%
98.71%
99.83%

99.97%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.97%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
99.99%
100.00%
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CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS SECTOR

INTERIOR SOLUTIONS
Saint-Gobain Isover France 100.00%
Saint-Gobain Isover G+H AG Germany 99.91%
Saint-Gobain Construction Products Belgium NV Belgiu 100.00%
CertainTeed Corporation United States 100.00%
Saint-Gobain Isover AB Sweden 100.00%
Saint-Gobain Ecophon AB Sweden 100.00%
Saint-Gobain Construction Product Russia Insulation  Russia 100.00%
BPB Plc United Kingdom 100.00%
Certain Teed Gypsum & Ceillings USA United States .Q0%
Certain Teed Gypsum Canada, Inc. Canada 100.00%
Saint-Gobain Gyproc South Africa South Africa 100.00%
Saint-Gobain Placo Iberica Spain 99.83%
Saint-Gobain PPC ltalia S.p.a Italy 100.00%
British Gypsum Ltd United Kingdom 100.00%
Gypsum Industries Ltd Ireland 100.00%
Placoplatre SA France 99.75%
Rigips GmbH Germany 100.00%
Thai Gypsum Products PLC Thailand 99.66%
Mag-Isover K.K. Japan 99.81%

EXTERIOR SOLUTIONS
Saint-Gobain Weber France 100.00%
Saint-Gobain Do Brazil Ltda Brazil 100.00%
Saint-Gobain Weber Cemarksa SA Spain 99.83%
Maxit Group AB Sweden 100.00%
Saint-Gobain Weber AG Switzerland 100.00%
Saint-Gobain Weber GmbH Germany 100.00%
CertainTeed Corporation United States 100.00%
Saint-Gobain PAM SA France 100.00%
Saint-Gobain PAM Deutschland GmbH Germany 100.00%
Saint-Gobain PAM UK Ltd United Kingdom 99.99%
Saint-Gobain PAM Esife SA Spain 99.83%
Saint-Gobain PAM ltalia S.p.a Italy 100.00%
Saint-Gobain Canalizagao Ltda Brazil 100.00%
Saint-Gobain Xuzhou Pipe Co Ltd China 100.00%
SG Pipelines Co Ltd China 100.00%
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BUILDING DISTRIBUTION SECTOR

Distribution Sanitaire Chauffage

Lapeyre

Point.P

Saint-Gobain Distribucion Construccion, S.L
Saint-Gobain Building Distribution Deutschland GmbH
Saint-Gobain Building Distribution Ltd
Saint-Gobain Distribution The Netherlands B.V
Saint-Gobain Distribution Nordic Ab

Optimera As

Saint-Gobain Distribution Denmark

Sanitas Troesch Ag

Norandex Building Material Distribution, Inc.

PACKAGING SECTOR

Saint-Gobain Emballage
Saint-Gobain Vidros SA
Saint-Gobain Oberland Ag
Saint-Gobain Vicasa SA
Saint-Gobain Containers, Inc.
Saint-Gobain Vetri S.p.a

France
France
France

Spain
Germany
United Kingdo
Neltheds
Sweden
Norway

Denmark
Switzerland

Unit&tates

France
Brazil
Germany
Spain

United States
Italy

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

83%
100.00%
99.99%
100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
96.67%
99.75%
100.00%
99.99%
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NOTE 34 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

None.
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